
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, December 8, 2015                                                                                                City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

 Seahorse Birthday Proclamation (Arts Commission Chair Lesli Cohan and Vice Chair Ed White) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 

the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-2. Pass Ordinance Adopting a 2015 Budget Amendment (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Abaco Pacific Real Estate Services Agreement (Vondran) 
C-4. Approve Olympic Environmental Resources 2016 Recycling Collection Events Agreement (Vondran) 
C-5. Accept Easement Agreement for Clements/253rd Place Drainage Project (Vondran) 
C-6. Approve Tri-City Public Works Operations and Cooperative Purchasing Interlocal Agreement 

Amendment (Vondran) 
C-7. Approve Stalzer and Associates Comprehensive Plan Update Contract Amendment (Hart) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
1. Receive Public Testimony and Adopt Ordinance Regarding Kent School District’s Six Year Capital 

Facilities Plan (Hart) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Approve Covington Community Park Phase II Design (Feser & Consultant) 
3. Consider Ordinance Related to Donations of Money and Property (Bahl) 
4. Consider Ordinance Adopting the CY2016 Operating and Capital Budget (Hendrickson) 

  
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 

PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – If needed 

ADJOURN 

Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  December 8, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Vouchers:  Vouchers #33342-33391, including ACH payments and 
electronic fund transfers in the amount of $524,008.47, dated November 25, 2015; and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004556078-1004556089 and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1004556295-10045556295 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits in the amount of 
$162,700.60, dated December 4, 2015. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #33342-33391, including ACH 
payments and electronic fund transfers in the amount of $524,008.47, dated 
November 25, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004556078-1004556089 
and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1004556295-10045556295 inclusive, plus 
employee direct deposits in the amount of $162,700.60, dated December 4, 
2015. 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 

1 of 160



2 of 160



3 of 160



4 of 160



5 of 160



6 of 160



7 of 160



8 of 160



9 of 160



10 of 160



11 of 160



12 of 160



13 of 160



   Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date: December 8, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER A PROPOSED ORDINANCE ADOPTING A 2015 BUDGET 

AMENDMENT  
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Proposed ordinance with exhibits 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION:  
It is the policy of the city and a requirement of the state auditor and state law to correctly report 
the budget at year end and account for all changes. A budget amendment is required under RCW 
35.33.121 if we’ve received unanticipated revenues, such as grant proceeds, that we intend to 
spend. 
 
After the November expenditure reports are completed and the financial reports are finalized, 
staff reviews the year end changes that have occurred in revenues, expenditures, fund balances, 
and operating transfers. If there are substantive changes that impact the original budget 
estimates, they are brought forward in the form of amendments to the original budget. This is an 
annual occurrence due to the changing nature of the budget.  
 
All funds are being amended to reflect the actual audited beginning fund balances.  The General 
Fund, Parks and Recreation Fund, Surface Water Management Fund, and Capital Investment 
Program Fund are being amended to reflect unanticipated grant proceeds and related 
expenditures.  In addition, the General Fund, Parks and Recreation Fund, Street Fund, Surface 
Water Management Fund, Capital Investment Program Fund, Cumulative Reserve Fund, Real 
Estate Excise Tax Fund 1st Qtr, and Real Estate Excise Tax 2nd Qtr Fund are being amended to 
account for transfers between funds and related expenditures.  Lastly, the Parks and Recreation 
Fund is being amended to account for additional Aquatics revenues and related expenditures. 
 
The employee positions/salary range schedule is also being amended to reflect staffing 
reclassifications that have occurred during the year.  The following positions/ranges have been 
added to the schedule:  Deputy Building Official, Senior Accounting Clerk, and Recreation Lead. 
No FTEs were added.  
 
Staff recommends that this ordinance be adopted as presented, as it is a fair and accurate 
assessment of the anticipated year end revenues, expenditures, operating transfers, and fund 
balances based on current relevant information.  
  
Failure to adopt the budget amendment as presented or to make changes could result in 
unfavorable audit recommendations and/or findings.  
 
 

14 of 160



ALTERNATIVES:  
1. The Council could elect to postpone or deny adopting this ordinance.  
2. The Council could make other amendments to the budget.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: As noted above 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:       X    Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion _____Other 

 
Council member ____________ moves, Council member ___________ 
seconds, to pass an Ordinance, in substantial form as that attached 
hereto, amending the 2015 Budget by amending Ordinance 17-14. 

 
 

15 of 160



    
ORDINANCE NO.  17-15 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, AMENDING 
THE 2015 BUDGET BY AMENDING SECTION 2 AND 5 
OF ORDINANCE NO. 17-14 

 
WHEREAS, the city passed Ordinance No. 17-14 on December 9, 2014, which approved 

the city’s budget for 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city wishes to adjust beginning estimated fund balances to audited fund 

balances; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city wishes to appropriate unanticipated grant proceeds and other 

revenues; and  
 
WHEREAS, the city wishes to adjust transfers between funds;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The amended budget for the City of Covington, Washington, for the year 2015 

is hereby adopted at the fund level in its final form and content, a true and correct copy of which 
is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
Section 2. Section 2 of Ordinance No. 17-14 is amended to read as follows: 
 

Estimated resources, including fund balances or working capital for each separate fund of 
the City of Covington and aggregate totals for all such funds combined, for the year 2015 
are set forth in summary form below, and are hereby appropriated for expenditure at the 
fund level during the year 2015 as set forth below: 

 
FUND AMOUNT 
General Fund $13,970,496  
Parks and Recreation Fund 3,109,820 
Development Services Fund 3,167,165 
Street Fund 1,603,274 
Surface Water Management Fund 10,713,963 
Capital Investment Program 5,932,861 
Local Improvement District 35,665 
LID Guaranty Fund 35,165 
Unemployment Reserve Fund 282,427 
Equipment Replacement Fund 1,030,402 
Cumulative Reserve Fund 1,422,551 

ATTACHMENT 1

16 of 160



Contingency Fund 421,576 
Real Estate Excise Tax Fund 1st Qtr 340,040 
Real Estate Excise Tax Fund 2nd Qtr 340,040 
Long-Term Debt Service Fund 1,276,904 
Total All Funds $43,682,349  

 
Section 3.  Section 5 of Ordinance 17-14 is amended and includes the Amended 2015 

Salary Schedule for authorized positions and is attached hereto as Exhibit B and fairly 
incorporated herein by this reference.  
 

Section 4.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it is determined to 
be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this ordinance, and 
ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it, shall remain in force and effect. 

 
Section 5. This ordinance shall be in force and take effect five (5) days after its 

publication according to law. 
 
PASSED by the Council on this 8th day of December, 2015.  
 
 

      
 _______________________                                             

Mayor Margaret Harto 
     

PUBLISHED:  December 11, 2015 
 

EFFECTIVE:   December 16, 2015 
ATTESTED: 
       
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
       
Sara Springer, City Attorney  

 
 

17 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON
Proposed Budget Amendments

2015

2015 Adopted Budget
2015 Proposed 

Amendment
2015 Amended 

Budget % Change
2015 Adopted 

Budget
2015 Proposed 

Amendment
2015 Amended 

Budget % Change

GENERAL FUND PARKS AND RECREATION FUND 

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance 4,176,665$                  305,991$            4,482,656$                  107.3% Beginning Fund Balance 224,078$             (9,822)$                         214,256$            95.6%
Operating Revenues 9,443,985                    8,690                  9,452,675                    100.1% Operating Revenues 1,366,542            102,348                        1,468,890           107.5%
Operating Transfers In 35,165                         -                          35,165                         100.0% Operating Transfers In 1,274,313            152,361                        1,426,674           112.0%

TOTAL RESOURCES 13,655,815$                314,681$            13,970,496$                102.3% TOTAL RESOURCES 2,864,933$          244,887$                      3,109,820$         108.5%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses 7,444,583$                  8,690$                7,453,273$                  100.1% Operating Expenses 2,579,499$          254,709$                      2,834,208$         109.9%
Operating Transfers Out 3,000,286                    79,720                3,080,006                    102.7% Operating Transfers Out 27,484                 -                                    27,484                100.0%
Ending Fund Balance 3,210,946                    226,271              3,437,217                    107.0% Ending Fund Balance 257,950               (9,822)                           248,128              96.2%

TOTAL USES 13,655,815$                314,681$            13,970,496$                102.3% TOTAL USES 2,864,933$          244,887$                      3,109,820$         108.5%

STREET FUND 

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance 2,436,070$                  (524,068)$           1,912,002$                  78.5% Beginning Fund Balance 436,072$             78,419$                        514,491$            118.0%
Operating Revenues 1,255,163                    -                          1,255,163                    100.0% Operating Revenues 607,150               -                                    607,150              100.0%
Operating Transfers In -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers In 476,633               5,000                            481,633              101.0%

TOTAL RESOURCES 3,691,233$                  (524,068)$           3,167,165$                  85.8% TOTAL RESOURCES 1,519,855$          83,419$                        1,603,274$         105.5%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses 1,099,538$                  -$                        1,099,538$                  100.0% Operating Expenses 1,090,313$          -$                                  1,090,313$         100.0%
Operating Transfers Out -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers Out -                           12,600                          12,600                0.0%
Ending Fund Balance 2,591,695                    (524,068)             2,067,627                    79.8% Ending Fund Balance 429,542               70,819                          500,361              116.5%

TOTAL USES 3,691,233$                  (524,068)$           3,167,165$                  85.8% TOTAL USES 1,519,855$          83,419$                        1,603,274$         105.5%

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance 7,847,483$                  684,107$            8,531,590$                  108.7% Beginning Fund Balance 1,848,931$          (78,902)$                       1,770,029$         95.7%
Operating Revenues 2,170,832                    11,541                2,182,373                    100.5% Operating Revenues 1,936,690            1,282,397                     3,219,087           166.2%
Operating Transfers In -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers In 350,000               593,745                        943,745              269.6%

TOTAL RESOURCES 10,018,315$                695,648$            10,713,963$                106.9% TOTAL RESOURCES 4,135,621$          1,797,240$                   5,932,861$         143.5%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses 2,426,170$                  11,541$              2,437,711$                  100.5% Operating Expenses 2,793,485$          1,876,142$                   4,669,627$         167.2%
Operating Transfers Out -                                  336,386              336,386                       0.0% Operating Transfers Out -                           -                                    -                         0.0%
Ending Fund Balance 7,592,145                    347,721              7,939,866                    104.6% Ending Fund Balance 1,342,136            (78,902)                         1,263,234           94.1%

TOTAL USES 10,018,315$                695,648$            10,713,963$                106.9% TOTAL USES 4,135,621$          1,797,240$                   5,932,861$         143.5%

LID FUND LID GUARANTY FUND

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance 250$                            (250)$                  -$                                 0.0% Beginning Fund Balance -$                         -$                                  -$                       0.0%
Operating Revenues 35,665                         -                          35,665                         100.0% Operating Revenues -                           -                                    -                         0.0%
Operating Transfers In -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers In 35,165                 -                                    35,165                100.0%

TOTAL RESOURCES 35,915$                       (250)$                  35,665$                       99.3% TOTAL RESOURCES 35,165$               -$                                  35,165$              100.0%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses 500$                            -$                        500$                            100.0% Operating Expenses -$                         -$                                  -$                       0.0%
Operating Transfers Out 35,165                         -                          35,165                         100.0% Operating Transfers Out 35,165                 -                                    35,165                100.0%
Ending Fund Balance 250                              (250)                    -                                   0.0% Ending Fund Balance -                           -                                    -                         0.0%

TOTAL USES 35,915$                       (250)$                  35,665$                       99.3% TOTAL USES 35,165$               -$                                  35,165$              100.0%

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FUND 

SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT FUND CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAM FUND 

2015 Budget Amendment Exhibit A.xlsx
 Amendments   12/3/2015

EXHIBIT A

18 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON
Proposed Budget Amendments

2015

2015 Adopted Budget
2015 Proposed 

Amendment
2015 Amended 

Budget % Change
2015 Adopted 

Budget
2015 Proposed 

Amendment
2015 Amended 

Budget % Change

UNEMPLOYMENT FUND EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance 233,227$                     1,168$                234,395$                     100.5% Beginning Fund Balance 740,959$             118,547$                      859,506$            116.0%
Operating Revenues 48,032                         -                          48,032                         100.0% Operating Revenues 170,896               -                                    170,896              100.0%
Operating Transfers In -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers In -                           -                                    -                       0.0%

TOTAL RESOURCES 281,259$                     1,168$                282,427$                     100.4% TOTAL RESOURCES 911,855$             118,547$                      1,030,402$         113.0%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses 50,000$                       -$                        50,000$                       100.0% Operating Expenses 73,308$               -$                                  73,308$              100.0%
Operating Transfers Out -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers Out -                           -                                    -                         0.0%
Ending Fund Balance 231,259                       1,168                  232,427                       100.5% Ending Fund Balance 838,547               118,547                        957,094              114.1%

TOTAL USES 281,259$                     1,168$                282,427$                     100.4% TOTAL USES 911,855$             118,547$                      1,030,402$         113.0%

CONTINGENCY FUND 

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance 1,392,129$                  9,222$                1,401,351$                  100.7% Beginning Fund Balance 421,216$             360$                             421,576$            100.1%
Operating Revenues 8,600                           -                          8,600                           100.0% Operating Revenues -                           -                                    -                         0.0%
Operating Transfers In -                                  12,600                12,600                         0.0% Operating Transfers In -                           -                                    -                         0.0%

TOTAL RESOURCES 1,400,729$                  21,822$              1,422,551$                  101.6% TOTAL RESOURCES 421,216$             360$                             421,576$            100.1%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses -$                                -$                        -$                                 0.0% Operating Expenses -$                         -$                                  -$                       0.0%
Operating Transfers Out -                                  5,000                  5,000                           0.0% Operating Transfers Out -                           -                                    -                         0.0%
Ending Fund Balance 1,400,729                    16,822                1,417,551                    101.2% Ending Fund Balance 421,216               360                               421,576              100.1%

TOTAL USES 1,400,729$                  21,822$              1,422,551$                  101.6% TOTAL USES 421,216$             360$                             421,576$            100.1%

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance -$                                15,320$              15,320$                       0.0% Beginning Fund Balance -$                         15,320$                        15,320$              0.0%
Operating Revenues 175,040                       149,680              324,720                       185.5% Operating Revenues 175,040               149,680                        324,720              185.5%
Operating Transfers In -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers In -                           -                                    -                         0.0%

TOTAL RESOURCES 175,040$                     165,000$            340,040$                     194.3% TOTAL RESOURCES 175,040$             165,000$                      340,040$            194.3%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses -$                                -$                        -$                                 0.0% Operating Expenses -$                         -$                                  -$                       0.0%
Operating Transfers Out 175,040                       165,000              340,040                       194.3% Operating Transfers Out 175,040               165,000                        340,040              194.3%
Ending Fund Balance -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Ending Fund Balance -                           -                                    -                         0.0%

TOTAL USES 175,040$                     165,000$            340,040$                     194.3% TOTAL USES 175,040$             165,000$                      340,040$            194.3%

LONG-TERM DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY

REVENUES REVENUES

Beginning Fund Balance -$                                -$                        -$                                 0.0% Beginning Fund Balance 19,757,080$        615,412$                      20,372,492$       103.1%
Operating Revenues -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Revenues 17,393,635          1,704,336                     19,097,971         109.8%
Operating Transfers In 1,276,904                    -                          1,276,904                    100.0% Operating Transfers In 3,448,180            763,706                        4,211,886           122.1%

TOTAL RESOURCES 1,276,904$                  -$                        1,276,904$                  100.0% TOTAL RESOURCES 40,598,895$        3,083,454$                   43,682,349$       107.6%

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

Operating Expenses 1,276,904$                  -$                        1,276,904$                  100.0% Operating Expenses 18,834,300$        2,151,082$                   20,985,382$       111.4%
Operating Transfers Out -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Operating Transfers Out 3,448,180            763,706                        4,211,886           122.1%
Ending Fund Balance -                                  -                          -                                   0.0% Ending Fund Balance 18,316,415          168,666                        18,485,081         100.9%

TOTAL USES 1,276,904$                  -$                        1,276,904$                  100.0% TOTAL USES 40,598,895$        3,083,454$                   43,682,349$       107.6%

CUMULATIVE RESERVE FUND

REAL ESTATE EXCISE TAX FUND 1ST QTR REAL ESTATE EXCISE TAX FUND 2ND QTR

2015 Budget Amendment Exhibit A.xlsx
 Amendments   12/3/2015

19 of 160



Position

City Manager 146,672$    - 175,133$    

Community Development Director 116,180$    - 138,726$    

Finance Director 116,180$    - 138,726$    

Parks & Recreation Director 116,180$    - 138,726$    

Public Works Director 116,180$    - 138,726$    

Chief Building Official 100,387$    - 119,868$    

City Engineer 94,705$      - 113,083$    

Deputy Finance Director 94,705$      - 113,083$    

Development Review Engineer 84,288$      - 100,645$    

Deputy Building Official 84,288$      - 100,645$    

Senior Information Systems Administrator 81,902$      - 97,795$      

City Clerk/Executive Assistant 79,516$      - 94,946$      

Personnel Manager 77,267$      - 92,261$      

Principal Planner 77,267$      - 92,261$      

Senior Accountant 75,016$      - 89,573$      

Maintenance Supervisor 75,016$      - 89,573$      

Communications & Marketing Manager 75,016$      - 89,573$      

Plans Examiner/Building Inspector 75,016$      - 89,573$      

Recreation Manager 75,016$      - 89,573$      

Senior Planner 72,892$      - 87,037$      

Aquatic Supervisor 70,769$      - 84,502$      

Surface Water Management Program Coordinator 68,725$      - 82,062$      

Permit Center Coordinator 66,764$      - 79,720$      

Construction Inspector 66,764$      - 79,720$      

Annual

City of Covington
Employee Positions/Salary Range Schedule

For the Fiscal Year 2015

Salary Range

EXHIBIT B

20 of 160



Position Annual

City of Covington
Employee Positions/Salary Range Schedule

For the Fiscal Year 2015

Salary Range

Parks Planner 66,764$      - 79,720$      

Associate Planner/Code Enforcement Officer 64,873$      - 77,462$      

Programs Supervisor/Public Works 64,873$      - 77,462$      

Accountant I 62,984$      - 75,208$      

Engineering Technician/GIS Coordinator 62,984$      - 75,208$      

Personnel & Human Services Analyst 61,201$      - 73,076$      

Senior Deputy City Clerk 61,201$      - 73,076$      

Maintenance Worker 59,420$      - 70,951$      

Senior Accounting Clerk 56,057$      - 66,936$      

Aquatics Specialist 52,883$      - 63,145$      

Athletics Specialist 52,883$      - 63,145$      

Executive Department Assistant/Receptionist 48,478$      - 57,885$      

Customer Service Specialist 45,733$      - 54,608$      

Office Technician II/Executive Office 45,733$      - 54,608$      

Management Assistant 40,702$      - 48,600$      

Water Safety Instructor II 35,400$      - 42,269$      

Specialty Instructor 33,396$      - 39,877$      

Water Safety Instructor 33,396$      - 39,877$      

Recreation Assistant 33,396$      - 39,877$      

Helpdesk Technician I 29,777$      - 35,555$      

Engineering/GIS Intern 29,555$      - 35,291$      

Finance Assistant 29,555$      - 35,291$      

Aquatics Lead 28,145$      - 33,607$      

Lifeguard II 28,145$      - 33,607$      

21 of 160



Position Annual

City of Covington
Employee Positions/Salary Range Schedule

For the Fiscal Year 2015

Salary Range

Maintenance Worker (Seasonal) 27,858$      - 33,265$      

Lifeguard 26,552$      - 31,704$      

Recreation Lead 26,552$      - 31,704$      

Referee 21,370$      - 25,517$      

Recreation Aide

Office Assistant $12/hr flat rate

$12/hr flat rate

22 of 160



  

 Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  December 8, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:   AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR 

SERVICES WITH ABACO PACIFIC INC. RELATING TO REAL ESTATE 
SERVICES.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):    
1. Proposed Agreement for Services – Abaco Pacific Inc. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor/Public Works 
 
EXPLANATION:  
Abaco Pacific Inc. has provided the city with quality real estate services over the years and their 
current agreement for services expires on December 31, 2015.  It is time for a new contract to be 
executed to continue the range of services that have been successfully provided.  Staff is 
recommending that council authorize the city manager to execute an agreement for services with 
Abaco Pacific Inc. for furnishing of professional real estate services to help the city in the 
process of acquiring real estate parcels for right of way and park purposes and that the city 
continue its productive relationship with Abaco Pacific Inc. 
 
The attached proposed agreement for services will again act as the master agreement to govern 
the relationship between the city and Abaco Pacific Inc.  Exhibit A to the proposed agreement 
references rates for services.   
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
The council could choose to not authorize the city manager to execute an agreement for services 
and direct staff to negotiate a new agreement or find a new service provider. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Real estate services are included as part of the right of way costs budgeted in each individual 
Capital Improvement Project (CIP). 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION: _____Ordinance             Resolution       X     Motion  _____Other 
 
 Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember_________________ 

seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute an Agreement for Services 
with Abaco Pacific Inc. relating to real estate services, in substantial form as 
that attached hereto. 

 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

23 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 1 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES is entered into this 8th day of December, 2015, by 
and between the City of Covington (“City”), a Washington municipal corporation, and Abaco 
Pacific, Inc. (“Consultant”), a Washington corporation. 
 
 RECITALS: 
 
 A. The City seeks the temporary services of a skilled independent contractor capable 
of working without direct supervision to perform Real Estate Services on behalf of the citizens of 
Covington; and 
 
 B. The Consultant has the requisite skill and experience necessary to provide said 
services; and 
 
 C. The City has selected the Consultant to perform said services; and 
 
 D. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms and conditions under 
which the Consultant will perform said services. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set forth 
herein, the City and the Consultant do hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1. Engagement.  The City, acting pursuant to its vested authority, does hereby 
engage the Consultant and the Consultant does hereby agree to perform on behalf of the City the 
services more particularly described herein.   
 
 2. Scope of Services.  Upon written authorization from the City to proceed, the 
Consultant shall perform the services described on Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference (“Services”), in a manner consistent with the accepted practices for 
similar services, performed to the City’s satisfaction, within the time period prescribed by the 
City and pursuant to the direction of the City Manager or his or her designee.  In performing the 
Services, the Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations, 
including, without limitation, all City codes, ordinances, resolutions, standards and policies, as 
now existing or hereafter adopted or amended, that may be applicable to its performance.  To the 
extent required by law, the Contractor and all subcontractors shall pay no less than the prevailing 
wage rate to employees performing work under this contract and shall submit a “Statement of 
Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages” and an “Affidavit of Wages Paid” in compliance with RCW 
39.12. 
 
 3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period 
commencing upon execution and ending upon the completion of the Services, but in any event 
no later than December 31, 2017 (“Term”), unless earlier terminated under the provisions of this 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be extended for additional periods of time upon the mutual 
written agreement of the City and the Consultant.  Time is of the essence in each and every term 
of this Agreement.  
 

ATTACHMENT 1

24 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 2 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

4. Compensation and Method of Payment.   
 
  4.1 Compensation.  In consideration of the Consultant performing the 
Services, the City agrees to pay the Consultant as follows [check applicable method of payment]: 
 
   4.1.1         An amount not to exceed $________ calculated on the basis 
of the hourly rates set forth in Exhibit “B” attached and incorporated herein by this reference; 
OR 
 
   4.1.2 ___ An amount not to exceed $________; OR 
 
   4.1.3     X     An amount calculated on the basis of the rates set forth in 
Exhibit “A” attached and incorporated herein by this reference 
 
  4.2. Method of Payment.  Payment by the City for the Services will only be 
made after the Services have been satisfactorily performed, a voucher or invoice is submitted in a 
form acceptable to the City, and the same is approved by the appropriate City representative.  
Payment shall be made no later than ten days after City Council approval of the invoiced 
amount.   
 
  4.3 First Invoice.  Prior to or along with the first invoice submitted, the 
Consultant shall return to the City a completed “Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and 
Certification”, also known as IRS form W-9. 
 
  4.4 Consultant Responsible for Taxes.  The Consultant shall be solely 
responsible for the payment of any taxes imposed by any lawful jurisdiction as a result of the 
performance and payment of this Agreement. 
 
 5. Warranty.  The Consultant warrants that it has the requisite training, skill and 
experience necessary to provide the Services and is appropriately accredited and licensed by all 
applicable agencies and governmental entities, including but not limited to being registered to do 
business in the City of Covington by obtaining a City of Covington business license.   The 
Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical adequacy and accuracy, 
timely completion and coordination of all plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports and 
other services prepared or performed pursuant to this Agreement.  The Consultant shall perform 
its work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and pursuant to the standards of 
professional care, skill, diligence and competence as are normally exercised by other members 
and/or firms of the profession in good standing working under the same or similar conditions and 
circumstances and in similar communities as the services provided by the Consultant under this 
Agreement.  The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional standards, performance and 
actions of all persons and firms performing work pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of 
Consultant.  The City shall also have the right to deduct from payments to the Consultant any 
costs or damages incurred by the City, or which may be incurred by the City, as a result of the 
Consultant’s failure to comply with the requirements of the Agreement or failure to meet the 
professional standard of care and skill, or both. The City’s approval of plans, drawings, designs, 
specifications, reports and other products of the professional services rendered hereunder shall 
not in any way relieve the Consultant of responsibility for the technical adequacy or accuracy 
thereof.  Neither the City’s review, approval, acceptance of, and/or payment for any services 
shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of 
action arising out of the performance of this Agreement.   

25 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 3 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

 
6. Ownership and Use of Documents.  Any and all original and copies of records, 

reports, designs, files, documents, drawings, specifications, data or information, regardless of 
form or format, and all other materials prepared or produced by the Consultant in connection 
with the Services shall be the property of the City whether the project for which they were 
created is executed or not. At the termination or cancellation of this Agreement, any and all such 
records or information remaining in the possession of the Consultant shall be delivered to the 
City.  No confidential information obtained or created by Consultant shall be disclosed to any 
person or party other than the City without the City’s prior written consent. 
 
 7. Independent Contractor.  It is the intention and understanding of the City and the 
Consultant that the Consultant shall be an independent contractor and that the City shall be 
neither liable nor obligated to pay the Consultant sick leave, vacation pay or any other benefit of 
employment.  The Consultant shall pay all income and other taxes due.  Industrial or any other 
insurance that is purchased for the benefit of the City, regardless of whether such may provide a 
secondary or incidental benefit to the Consultant, shall not be deemed to convert this Agreement 
to an employment contract.  The Consultant will be solely responsible for its acts and for the acts 
of its agents, employees, sub consultants or representatives during the performance of this 
Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relation of employer 
and employee or principal and agent between the parties hereto.  The Consultant shall have the 
sole judgment of the means, mode or manner of the actual performance of this Agreement.  The 
Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for carrying out and 
accomplishing this Agreement. 
 
 8. Indemnification.  To the maximum extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City and all of its officials, employees, principals and 
agents from all claims, demands, suits, actions, and liability of any kind, including injuries to 
persons or damages to property, which arise out of, are connected with, or are due to any errors, 
omissions or negligent acts of Consultant, its contractor, and/or employees, agents, volunteers or 
representatives in performance of this Agreement; provided, however, that if (and only if) the 
provisions of RCW 4.24.115 apply to the work and services under this Agreement and any such 
damages and injuries to persons or property are caused by or result from the concurrent 
negligence of Consultant, its contractor or employees, agents, volunteers or representatives and 
the City or its employees, agents, or representatives, the indemnification applies only to the 
extent of the negligence of Consultant, its contractor or employees, volunteers, agents, or 
representatives.  In the event of any such claims, demands, suits, actions, and lawsuits, 
Consultant shall assume all costs of defense thereof, including administrative and legal fees 
incurred by the City, and of all resulting judgments that may be obtained against the City or any 
of its officers, principals, agents, or employees.  If resulting there from, any lien is placed upon 
property of the City or any of its officers, principals, agents, or employees, Consultant shall at 
once cause the same to be dissolved and discharged by giving bond or otherwise.  Consultant 
specifically assumes potential liability for actions brought by Consultant’s own employees 
against the City and for that purpose Consultant specifically waives, as respects the City only, 
any immunity under the Worker's Compensation Act, RCW Title 51; and Consultant recognizes 
that this waiver was the subject of mutual negotiation and specifically entered into pursuant to 
the provision of RCW 4.24.115, if applicable. In the event either party incurs attorney's fees, 
costs or other legal expenses to enforce the provisions of this section against the other party, all 
such fees, costs and expenses shall be recoverable by the prevailing party. 
 

26 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 4 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

 The provisions of this Section shall survive any expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 
 

9. Insurance.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of work hereunder by the Consultant, its 
agents, representatives or employees. Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by the 
agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided 
by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in 
equity. The Consultant shall at a minimum obtain and carry the following insurance in such 
forms and with such carriers who have a rating satisfactory to the City:  
 

9.1 Workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance in amounts 
sufficient pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington;  

 
9.2 Commercial general liability insurance covering liability arising from 

premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury and advertising injury and written 
on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 with combined single limits of liability not less than 
$1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate for bodily injury, including personal 
injury or death, products liability and property damage.  

 
9.3 Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and 

leased vehicles and written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute 
form providing equivalent liability coverage with combined single limits of liability not less than 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury, including personal injury or death and property 
damage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage.   

 
9.4 Professional liability insurance covering any negligent professional acts, 

errors or omissions for which the Consultant is legally responsible and with combined single 
limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit for 
damages sustained by reason of or in the course of operation under this Agreement. 
 

The City shall be named as additional insured on all such insurance policies, with the 
exception of professional liability and workers' compensation coverage(s) if the Consultant 
participates in a state-run workers’ comp program.  The Consultant shall provide original 
certificates of insurance and a copy of the amendatory endorsement, concurrent with the 
execution of this Agreement, evidencing such coverage and, at City's request, furnish the City 
with copies of all insurance policies and with evidence of payment of premiums or fees of such 
policies.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than 
A:VII. All insurance policies shall contain a clause of endorsement providing that they may not 
be terminated or materially amended during the Term of this Agreement, except after thirty (30) 
days prior written notice to the City.  If the Consultant's insurance policies are "claims made," 
the Consultant shall be required to maintain tail coverage for a minimum period of three (3) 
years from the date this Agreement is actually terminated or upon project completion and 
acceptance by the City.  The Consultant's failure to maintain such insurance policies shall be 
grounds for the City's immediate termination of this Agreement. 
 

The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement with respect to any event occurring prior to such expiration or termination. 
 

27 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 5 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

10. Books and Records.  The Consultant agrees to maintain books, records, and 
documents which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the 
performance of the Services and maintain such accounting procedures and practices as may be 
deemed necessary by the City to assure proper accounting of all funds paid pursuant to this 
Agreement.  These records shall be subject, at all reasonable times, to inspection, review or audit 
by the City, its authorized representative, the State Auditor, or other governmental officials 
authorized by law to monitor this Agreement. 
 
 11. Termination.   
 
  11.1 Prior to the expiration of the Term, this Agreement may be terminated 
immediately, with or without cause, by the City.  In the event of termination or suspension, all 
finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, worksheets, models, reports or other materials 
prepared by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted to the City within five 
days of the date of termination. 
 
  11.2 In the event this Agreement is terminated or suspended, the Consultant 
shall be entitled to payment for all services satisfactorily performed and reimbursable expenses 
incurred to the date of termination. 
 
  11.3 This provision shall not prevent the City from seeking any legal remedies 
it may otherwise have for the violation, default, or nonperformance of any provision of this 
Agreement.  The remedies provided in this paragraph shall be in addition to any other remedy 
the City may have at law or in equity. 
 

12. Discrimination.  In all Consultant services, programs or activities, and all 
Consultant hiring and employment made possible by or resulting from this Agreement, there 
shall be no discrimination by the Consultant or by the Consultant's employees, agents, 
subcontractors or representatives against any person because of sex, age (except minimum age 
and retirement provisions), race, color, creed, national origin, marital status or the presence of 
any disability, including sensory, mental or physical handicaps, unless based upon a bona fide 
occupational qualification in relationship to hiring and employment.  This requirement shall 
apply, but not be limited to the following:  employment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The 
Consultant shall not violate any of the terms of Chapter 49.60 RCW, Title VII of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, the Americans With Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
or any other applicable federal, state or local law or regulation regarding non-discrimination. 
Any material violation of this provision shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement by 
the City and, in the case of the Consultant's breach, may result in ineligibility for further City 
agreements.   
 
 13. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or transfer any 
interest in this Agreement or subcontract any portion of the services contemplated hereunder 
without the prior written consent of the City. 
 
 14. Conflict of Interest.  The Consultant represents to the City that it has no conflict 
of interest in performing any of the services described herein.  It is recognized that the 
Consultant may or will be performing services during the Term for other parties; provided, 
however that such performance of other services shall not conflict with or interfere with the 
Consultant’s ability to perform the Services.  In the event that the Consultant is asked to perform 

28 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 6 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

services for a project with which it may have a conflict, the Consultant shall immediately 
disclose such potential conflict to the City.  The Consultant agrees to resolve any actual conflicts 
of interest in favor of the City. 
 

15. Confidentiality.  All information regarding the City obtained by the Consultant 
and designated by the City as confidential in the performance of this Agreement shall be 
considered confidential.  Breach of confidentiality by the Consultant shall be grounds for 
immediate termination of this Agreement. 
 
 16. Non-appropriation of Funds.  If sufficient funds are not appropriated or allocated 
for payment under this Agreement for any future fiscal period, the City will so notify the 
Consultant and shall not be obligated to make payments for services or amounts incurred after 
the end of the City’s current fiscal period.  This Agreement shall terminate upon the completion 
of all remaining services for which funds are allocated.  No penalty or expense shall accrue to the 
City in the event that the terms of this provision are effectuated. 
 
 17. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the exhibits attached hereto, 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this 
Agreement.  There are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations other than those contained 
herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous communications, negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either verbal or written, between the parties hereto concerning the 
subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 18. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by writing 
signed by all parties hereto.   
 
 19. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of the City to declare any breach or default 
immediately upon occurrence shall not waive such breach or default.  Failure of the City to 
declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of the City's right to declare another breach 
or default. 
 
 20. Successors.  Subject to the provisions of paragraph 13 above, this Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties, their respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, personal representatives, successors and assigns. 
 
 21. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be 
severable.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement shall 
not affect the other provisions hereof, and the Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if 
such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a part of this Agreement.  
 
 22. Notices.  All notices, payments and other communications hereunder shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or mailed, by first 
class or certified mail, with postage prepaid, 
 
  22.1 if to the Consultant, to: 
 

Abaco Pacific, Inc.  
P.O. Box 1119 

   North Bend, WA  98045 
 

29 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 7 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

or to such other person or place as the Consultant shall furnish to the City in writing; and 
 

22.2 if to the City, to: 
 

   City of Covington 
   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100 
   Covington, WA  98042 
 
or to such other person or place as the City shall furnish to the Consultant in writing. 
 

Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon personal delivery or, if mailed, upon 
the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days after the date of mailing. 
 
 23. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Washington. 
 
 24. Venue.  The venue for any cause of action arising out of this Agreement shall be 
King County, Washington. 
 
 25. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any default under this Agreement, the 
substantially defaulting party agrees to pay the substantially non-defaulting party’s reasonable 
expenses which the latter incurs by reason thereof, including but not limited to reasonable 
attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of such default or the determination of 
the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in legal proceedings, or 
otherwise.  The term “legal proceedings” as used in this paragraph shall include all litigation, 
arbitration, administrative, bankruptcy and judicial proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 
 
 26. Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are intended solely for convenience of 
reference and shall be given no effect in the interpretation of this Agreement.   
 
 27. Survival of Representations.  The representations and warranties of the City and 
the Consultant contained hereto shall survive indefinitely. 
 
 28. Independent Counsel.  The Consultant acknowledges that the drafter of this 
Agreement is the City’s legal representative to whom the Consultant does not look to for any 
legal counseling or legal advice with regard to this transaction.  The Consultant further 
acknowledges that it has been advised to consult with independent legal counsel and has had an 
opportunity to do so.  By signing this Agreement, the Consultant acknowledges that it has 
consulted with independent legal counsel of its choice or has knowingly waived the right to do 
so.  There shall be no presumption of draftsmanship in favor of or implied against any party 
hereto. 
 

29. Authority.  Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City and 
the Consultant represents and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to execute and 
deliver this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant or the City. 
 

30 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 8 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year 
written above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Regan Bolli 
Its: City Manager 
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk    Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
 
ABACO PACIFIC, INC. 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
By: Jeri J. Cranney 
Its: President/Broker 
 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF ____________) 
 
On this day personally appeared before me Jeri Cranney, to me known to be the President/Broker 
of Abaco Pacific, Inc. that executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said 
instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said corporation, for the uses and 
purposes therein mentioned, and on oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute said 
instrument and that the seal affixed, if any, is the corporate seal of said corporation. 
 

GIVEN my hand and official seal this ______ day of ______________________, 2015. 
 

_____________________________________ 
_____________________________________ 
     (typed/printed name of notary) 
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington. 
My commission expires__________________ 

31 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES - 9 
Updated 4-07-09 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Scope of Services 
Provide Real Estate Services including but not limited to property evaluation, 
valuation/appraisal, inspection, negotiation, acquisition, condemnation of certain real property, 
relocation of certain residences/businesses, owner/tenant representation, brokerage, attend and 
participate in public meetings, presentations to Council and other officials and provide other 
professional and related services including but not limited to providing expert witness testimony 
in mediation, arbitration and trial.   
 
Additionally, provide for required bid and selection process, contract management, project 
management and oversight of subcontractors for work including but not limited to appraisal, 
environmental reviews/reports, soils, engineering, business valuation, relocation appraisals and 
property management services. 
 
Sub Contracted services:  
Sub Contracted services shall be approved on an as-needed basis, in advance.  Services shall 
include bid and selection process, project management and oversight of subcontractors for work 
including but not limited to appraisal, environmental reviews/reports, soils, engineering, business 
valuation, relocation appraisals and property management services.   
 
Brokerage services: 
Brokerage services shall be provided upon request.  Fees for brokerage services shall be 
negotiated on a case-by-case basis and shall be performed under separate listing and sale 
agreement(s) between the City and Consultant.   

Rates: 
 
Professional/Senior technical services:       $105.00/hour 
 
Expert witness testimony, mediation, arbitration and court appearances:   
Pre-trial, preparation and follow-up,        $150.00/hour 
Actual mediation, arbitration and/or court time.       $225.00/hour 
Sub-contracted services             Invoiced charges 
 
Overhead rate(s):  
An overhead rate of thirty-five (35%) shall be assessed on all services and charges defined 
above.  

Supplies, Equipment and other Direct Expenses: 
Charges for certain items shall be made including: 
Printing and copying of materials, reports:      $0.15/page 
Blue print/large format copies:       $2.00/ page 
Vehicle Mileage:         $0.505/mile 
 
Charges for other items not typically furnished will be charged at actual rates.  These may 
include rental equipment, tolls, permits, licenses, fees, aerial photographs, pre-approved travel 
and extraordinary long distance telephone charges.    
 
Overhead rate(s): Overhead charges will not be assessed on direct expenses defined above. 

32 of 160



 Consent Agenda Item C-4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  December 8, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WITH OLYMPIC ENVIRONMENTAL 
RESOURCES RELATING TO RECYCLING COLLECTION EVENTS FOR 
2016. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 1.  Proposed Agreement for Services with Olympic Environmental Resources 
 
PREPARED BY:  Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor/Public Works 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The City applied for and received a total of three grants from Washington State Department of 
Ecology and King County to implement recycling collection events in 2016.  Staff selected 
Olympic Environmental Resources (OER) as the most qualified to perform the work.  This 
proposed contract recognizes the expanded scope of work to include the additional King County 
grant funds and the addition of adjacent unincorporated King County residents in the 2016 
Recycling Collection Events.  The agreement is from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 
2016.  This contract is an integral part of the City of Covington’s recycling element of the overall 
solid waste management program because the City of Covington does not have adequate staffing 
or expertise to implement the programs without outside assistance. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Choose not to authorize the City Manager to enter into the agreement and thereby decline to 
implement the recycling collection events with grants from King County and Department of 
Ecology. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
There is no net cost to the City of Covington.  By combining funds from three grants, the City is 
able to provide the recycling programs by contracting with a private company for provision of 
the services with 100% of the costs, including city staff time, eligible for reimbursement from 
the various granting agencies. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION: ___Ordinance            Resolution       X   Motion     ___Other 
 

Councilmember _________________ moves, Councilmember _____________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute an Agreement for Services 
with Olympic Environmental Resources relating to recycling collection 
events for 2016, in substantial form as that attached hereto.  

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

33 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 1 
Updated 4-07-09 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES is entered into this 8th day of December, 2015, by 
and between the City of Covington (“City”), a Washington municipal corporation, and Olympic 
Environmental Resources (“Consultant”), a corporation. 
 
 RECITALS: 
 
 A. The City seeks the temporary services of a skilled independent contractor capable 
of working without direct supervision to perform the coordination of the City of Covington 
recycling events on behalf of the citizens of Covington; and 
 
 B. The Consultant has the requisite skill and experience necessary to provide said 
services; and 
 
 C. The City has selected the Consultant to perform said services; and 
 
 D. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish the terms and conditions under 
which the Consultant will perform said services. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set forth 
herein, the City and the Consultant do hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1. Engagement.  The City, acting pursuant to its vested authority, does hereby 
engage the Consultant and the Consultant does hereby agree to perform on behalf of the City the 
services more particularly described herein.   
 
 2. Scope of Services.  Upon written authorization from the City to proceed, the 
Consultant shall perform the services described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference (“Services”), in a manner consistent with the accepted practices for 
similar services, performed to the City’s satisfaction, within the time period prescribed by the 
City and pursuant to the direction of the City Manager or his or her designee.  In performing the 
Services, the Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations, 
including, without limitation, all City codes, ordinances, resolutions, standards and policies, as 
now existing or hereafter adopted or amended, that may be applicable to its performance.  To the 
extent required by law, the Contractor and all subcontractors shall pay no less than the prevailing 
wage rate to employees performing work under this contract and shall submit a “Statement of 
Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages” and an “Affidavit of Wages Paid” in compliance with RCW 
39.12. 
 
 3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period 
commencing upon execution and ending upon the completion of the Services, but in any event 
no later than December 31, 2016 (“Term”), unless earlier terminated under the provisions of this 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be extended for additional periods of time upon the mutual 
written agreement of the City and the Consultant.  Time is of the essence in each and every term 
of this Agreement.  
 

ATTACHMENT 1

34 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 2 
Updated 4-07-09 

4. Compensation and Method of Payment.   
 
  4.1 Compensation.  In consideration of the Consultant performing the 
Services, the City agrees to pay the Consultant an amount not to exceed $46,000. 
 
  4.2. Method of Payment.  Payment by the City for the Services will only be 
made after the Services have been satisfactorily performed, a voucher or invoice is submitted in a 
form acceptable to the City, and the same is approved by the appropriate City representative.  
Payment shall be made no later than ten days after City Council approval of the invoiced 
amount.   
 
  4.3 First Invoice.  Prior to or along with the first invoice submitted, the 
Consultant shall return to the City a completed “Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and 
Certification”, also known as IRS form W-9. 
 
  4.4 Consultant Responsible for Taxes.  The Consultant shall be solely 
responsible for the payment of any taxes imposed by any lawful jurisdiction as a result of the 
performance and payment of this Agreement. 
 
 5. Warranty.  The Consultant warrants that it has the requisite training, skill and 
experience necessary to provide the Services and is appropriately accredited and licensed by all 
applicable agencies and governmental entities, including but not limited to being registered to do 
business in the City of Covington by obtaining a City of Covington business license.   The 
Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical adequacy and accuracy, 
timely completion and coordination of all plans, designs, drawings, specifications, reports and 
other services prepared or performed pursuant to this Agreement.  The Consultant shall perform 
its work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement and pursuant to the standards of 
professional care, skill, diligence and competence as are normally exercised by other members 
and/or firms of the profession in good standing working under the same or similar conditions and 
circumstances and in similar communities as the services provided by the Consultant under this 
Agreement.  The Consultant shall be responsible for the professional standards, performance and 
actions of all persons and firms performing work pursuant to this Agreement on behalf of 
Consultant.  The City shall also have the right to deduct from payments to the Consultant any 
costs or damages incurred by the City, or which may be incurred by the City, as a result of the 
Consultant’s failure to comply with the requirements of the Agreement or failure to meet the 
professional standard of care and skill, or both. The City’s approval of plans, drawings, designs, 
specifications, reports and other products of the professional services rendered hereunder shall 
not in any way relieve the Consultant of responsibility for the technical adequacy or accuracy 
thereof.  Neither the City’s review, approval, acceptance of, and/or payment for any services 
shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of 
action arising out of the performance of this Agreement.   
 

6. Ownership and Use of Documents.  Any and all original and copies of records, 
reports, designs, files, documents, drawings, specifications, data or information, regardless of 
form or format, and all other materials prepared or produced by the Consultant in connection 
with the Services shall be the property of the City whether the project for which they were 
created is executed or not. At the termination or cancellation of this Agreement, any and all such 
records or information remaining in the possession of the Consultant shall be delivered to the 
City.  No confidential information obtained or created by Consultant shall be disclosed to any 
person or party other than the City without the City’s prior written consent. 
 

35 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 3 
Updated 4-07-09 

 7. Independent Contractor.  It is the intention and understanding of the City and the 
Consultant that the Consultant shall be an independent contractor and that the City shall be 
neither liable nor obligated to pay the Consultant sick leave, vacation pay or any other benefit of 
employment.  The Consultant shall pay all income and other taxes due.  Industrial or any other 
insurance that is purchased for the benefit of the City, regardless of whether such may provide a 
secondary or incidental benefit to the Consultant, shall not be deemed to convert this Agreement 
to an employment contract.  The Consultant will be solely responsible for its acts and for the acts 
of its agents, employees, sub consultants or representatives during the performance of this 
Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relation of employer 
and employee or principal and agent between the parties hereto.  The Consultant shall have the 
sole judgment of the means, mode or manner of the actual performance of this Agreement.  The 
Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for carrying out and 
accomplishing this Agreement. 
 
 8. Indemnification.  To the maximum extent permitted by law, Consultant shall 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City and all of its officials, employees, principals and 
agents from all claims, demands, suits, actions, and liability of any kind, including injuries to 
persons or damages to property, which arise out of, are connected with, or are due to any errors, 
omissions or negligent acts of Consultant, its contractor, and/or employees, agents, volunteers or 
representatives in performance of this Agreement; provided, however, that if (and only if) the 
provisions of RCW 4.24.115 apply to the work and services under this Agreement and any such 
damages and injuries to persons or property are caused by or result from the concurrent 
negligence of Consultant, its contractor or employees, agents, volunteers or representatives and 
the City or its employees, agents, or representatives, the indemnification applies only to the 
extent of the negligence of Consultant, its contractor or employees, volunteers, agents, or 
representatives.  In the event of any such claims, demands, suits, actions, and lawsuits, 
Consultant shall assume all costs of defense thereof, including administrative and legal fees 
incurred by the City, and of all resulting judgments that may be obtained against the City or any 
of its officers, principals, agents, or employees.  If resulting there from, any lien is placed upon 
property of the City or any of its officers, principals, agents, or employees, Consultant shall at 
once cause the same to be dissolved and discharged by giving bond or otherwise.  Consultant 
specifically assumes potential liability for actions brought by Consultant’s own employees 
against the City and for that purpose Consultant specifically waives, as respects the City only, 
any immunity under the Worker's Compensation Act, RCW Title 51; and Consultant recognizes 
that this waiver was the subject of mutual negotiation and specifically entered into pursuant to 
the provision of RCW 4.24.115, if applicable. In the event either party incurs attorney's fees, 
costs or other legal expenses to enforce the provisions of this section against the other party, all 
such fees, costs and expenses shall be recoverable by the prevailing party. 
 
 The provisions of this Section shall survive any expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 
 

9. Insurance.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may 
arise from or in connection with the performance of work hereunder by the Consultant, its 
agents, representatives or employees. Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by the 
agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided 
by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in 
equity. The Consultant shall at a minimum obtain and carry the following insurance in such 
forms and with such carriers who have a rating satisfactory to the City:  
 

36 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 4 
Updated 4-07-09 

9.1 Workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance in amounts 
sufficient pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington;  

 
9.2 Commercial general liability insurance covering liability arising from 

premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury and advertising injury and 
written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 with combined single limits of liability not 
less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate for bodily injury, 
including personal injury or death, products liability and property damage.  

 
9.3 Automobile liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and 

leased vehicles and written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01 or a 
substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage with combined single limits of 
liability not less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury, including personal injury 
or death and property damage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to provide 
contractual liability coverage.   

 
9.4 Professional liability insurance covering any negligent professional acts, 

errors or omissions for which the Consultant is legally responsible and with combined 
single limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy 
aggregate limit for damages sustained by reason of or in the course of operation under 
this Agreement. 

 
The City shall be named as additional insured on all such insurance policies, with the 

exception of professional liability and workers' compensation coverage(s) if the Consultant 
participates in a state-run workers’ comp program.  The Consultant shall provide original 
certificates of insurance and a copy of the amendatory endorsement, concurrent with the 
execution of this Agreement, evidencing such coverage and, at City's request, furnish the City 
with copies of all insurance policies and with evidence of payment of premiums or fees of such 
policies.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than 
A:VII. All insurance policies shall contain a clause of endorsement providing that they may not 
be terminated or materially amended during the Term of this Agreement, except after thirty (30) 
days prior written notice to the City.  If the Consultant's insurance policies are "claims made," 
the Consultant shall be required to maintain tail coverage for a minimum period of three (3) 
years from the date this Agreement is actually terminated or upon project completion and 
acceptance by the City.  The Consultant's failure to maintain such insurance policies shall be 
grounds for the City's immediate termination of this Agreement. 
 

The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement with respect to any event occurring prior to such expiration or termination. 
 

10. Books and Records.  The Consultant agrees to maintain books, records, and 
documents which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the 
performance of the Services and maintain such accounting procedures and practices as may be 
deemed necessary by the City to assure proper accounting of all funds paid pursuant to this 
Agreement.  These records shall be subject, at all reasonable times, to inspection, review or audit 
by the City, its authorized representative, the State Auditor, or other governmental officials 
authorized by law to monitor this Agreement. 
 

37 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 5 
Updated 4-07-09 

 11. Termination.   
 
  11.1 Prior to the expiration of the Term, this Agreement may be terminated 
immediately, with or without cause, by the City.  In the event of termination or suspension, all 
finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, worksheets, models, reports or other materials 
prepared by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted to the City within five 
days of the date of termination. 
 
  11.2 In the event this Agreement is terminated or suspended, the Consultant 
shall be entitled to payment for all services satisfactorily performed and reimbursable expenses 
incurred to the date of termination. 
 
  11.3 This provision shall not prevent the City from seeking any legal remedies 
it may otherwise have for the violation, default, or nonperformance of any provision of this 
Agreement.  The remedies provided in this paragraph shall be in addition to any other remedy 
the City may have at law or in equity. 
 

12. Discrimination.  In all Consultant services, programs or activities, and all 
Consultant hiring and employment made possible by or resulting from this Agreement, there 
shall be no discrimination by the Consultant or by the Consultant's employees, agents, 
subcontractors or representatives against any person because of sex, age (except minimum age 
and retirement provisions), race, color, creed, national origin, marital status or the presence of 
any disability, including sensory, mental or physical handicaps, unless based upon a bona fide 
occupational qualification in relationship to hiring and employment.  This requirement shall 
apply, but not be limited to the following:  employment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The 
Consultant shall not violate any of the terms of Chapter 49.60 RCW, Title VII of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964, the Americans With Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
or any other applicable federal, state or local law or regulation regarding non-discrimination. 
Any material violation of this provision shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement by 
the City and, in the case of the Consultant's breach, may result in ineligibility for further City 
agreements.   
 
 13. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or transfer any 
interest in this Agreement or subcontract any portion of the services contemplated hereunder 
without the prior written consent of the City. 
 
 14. Conflict of Interest.  The Consultant represents to the City that it has no conflict 
of interest in performing any of the services described herein.  It is recognized that the 
Consultant may or will be performing services during the Term for other parties; provided, 
however that such performance of other services shall not conflict with or interfere with the 
Consultant’s ability to perform the Services.  In the event that the Consultant is asked to perform 
services for a project with which it may have a conflict, the Consultant shall immediately 
disclose such potential conflict to the City.  The Consultant agrees to resolve any actual conflicts 
of interest in favor of the City. 
 

15. Confidentiality.  All information regarding the City obtained by the Consultant 
and designated by the City as confidential in the performance of this Agreement shall be 
considered confidential.  Breach of confidentiality by the Consultant shall be grounds for 
immediate termination of this Agreement. 

  

38 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 6 
Updated 4-07-09 

 16. Non-appropriation of Funds.  If sufficient funds are not appropriated or allocated 
for payment under this Agreement for any future fiscal period, the City will so notify the 
Consultant and shall not be obligated to make payments for services or amounts incurred after 
the end of the City’s current fiscal period.  This Agreement shall terminate upon the completion 
of all remaining services for which funds are allocated.  No penalty or expense shall accrue to the 
City in the event that the terms of this provision are effectuated. 
 
 17. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the exhibits attached hereto, 
constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this 
Agreement.  There are no promises, terms, conditions or obligations other than those contained 
herein, and this Agreement shall supersede all previous communications, negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either verbal or written, between the parties hereto concerning the 
subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 18. Amendment.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except by writing 
signed by all parties hereto.   
 
 19. No Waiver.  Failure or delay of the City to declare any breach or default 
immediately upon occurrence shall not waive such breach or default.  Failure of the City to 
declare one breach or default does not act as a waiver of the City's right to declare another breach 
or default. 
 
 20. Successors.  Subject to the provisions of paragraph 13 above, this Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties, their respective heirs, executors, 
administrators, personal representatives, successors and assigns. 
 
 21. Severability.  Each and every provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be 
severable.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Agreement shall 
not affect the other provisions hereof, and the Agreement shall be construed in all respects as if 
such invalid or unenforceable provision were not a part of this Agreement.  
 
 22. Notices.  All notices, payments and other communications hereunder shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if personally delivered or mailed, by first 
class or certified mail, with postage prepaid, 
 
  22.1 if to the Consultant, to: 

Paul Devine 
   Olympic Environmental Resources 
   4715 SW Walker Street 
   Seattle, WA  98116 
 
or to such other person or place as the Consultant shall furnish to the City in writing; and 
 

22.2 if to the City, to: 

Shellie Bates 
City of Covington 

   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite100 
   Covington, WA  98042 
 
or to such other person or place as the City shall furnish to the Consultant in writing. 

39 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 7 
Updated 4-07-09 

 
Notices and payments shall be deemed given upon personal delivery or, if mailed, upon 

the earlier of actual receipt or three (3) business days after the date of mailing. 
 
 23. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Washington. 
 
 24. Venue.  The venue for any cause of action arising out of this Agreement shall be 
King County, Washington. 
 
 25. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any default under this Agreement, the 
substantially defaulting party agrees to pay the substantially non-defaulting party’s reasonable 
expenses which the latter incurs by reason thereof, including but not limited to reasonable 
attorney’s fees, whether with respect to the investigation of such default or the determination of 
the application or the pursuit of remedies with respect thereto, or in legal proceedings, or 
otherwise.  The term “legal proceedings” as used in this paragraph shall include all litigation, 
arbitration, administrative, bankruptcy and judicial proceedings, including appeals therefrom. 
 
 26. Headings.  The headings in this Agreement are intended solely for convenience of 
reference and shall be given no effect in the interpretation of this Agreement.   
 
 27. Survival of Representations.  The representations and warranties of the City and 
the Consultant contained hereto shall survive indefinitely. 
 
 28. Independent Counsel.  The Consultant acknowledges that the drafter of this 
Agreement is the City’s legal representative to whom the Consultant does not look to for any 
legal counseling or legal advice with regard to this transaction.  The Consultant further 
acknowledges that it has been advised to consult with independent legal counsel and has had an 
opportunity to do so.  By signing this Agreement, the Consultant acknowledges that it has 
consulted with independent legal counsel of its choice or has knowingly waived the right to do 
so.  There shall be no presumption of draftsmanship in favor of or implied against any party 
hereto. 
 

29. Authority.  Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of the City and 
the Consultant represents and warrants that such individuals are duly authorized to execute and 
deliver this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant or the City. 
 

40 of 160



CITY OF COVINGTON AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 8 
Updated 4-07-09 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year 
written above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk    Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
 
OLYMPIC ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Paul Devine, General Manager 
 
 

41 of 160



EXHIBIT A 
 

Scope of Services 
 
This Scope of Work is intended to detail Olympic Environmental Resource’s (OER) 
services and responsibilities in implementing City of Covington Recycling Projects.  In 
2016, OER will implement two residential Recycling Collection Events, one Business 
Recycling Collection Event, and one or more Rain Barrel and/or Compost Bin Sales.  
The proposed projects include: 
 
Residential Recycling Events 
The events are tentatively scheduled for spring (April, May) and fall (September, 
October) of 2016.  At one or all events the following materials will be collected and 
recycled:  used tires, used motor oil, bulky yard waste (large material only), scrap wood, 
appliances (including refrigerators, freezers, household air conditioners, and other 
appliances), computer/electronic equipment, ferrous metals, nonferrous metals, textiles, 
reusable or recyclable household goods, porcelain toilets and sinks, propane tanks, 
styrofoam, and other materials whenever practical.  OER subcontracts out services to 
vendors who specialize in the recycling of specific materials.  User fees will apply to the 
collection of some materials. In 2016, the Covington Recycling Collection Events will 
include area residents living in unincorporated King County. 
 
Business Recycling Event 
To address the situation that many Covington businesses have of keeping/storing 
recyclable materials, the OER will implement a Covington Business Recycling 
Collection Event.  The purpose will be to allow for the collection of recyclables that 
would otherwise not be collected.  Many small businesses do not generate enough of a 
particular material to retain a service provider, so they store the material.  Other 
businesses generate materials that there are not service providers readily available.  To 
help City businesses recycle more material, the OER will implement a one-day event to 
collect and recycle a variety of materials from Covington businesses.  The City will co-
host this event with the City of Maple Valley.  The Business Recycling Collection Event 
implementation will be based on availability of grant funds. 
 
Rain Barrel/Compost Bin Distribution 
The City will support recycling programs by distributing rain barrels and/or backyard 
compost bins to City residents.  OER will promote distribution of rain barrels and/or 
backyard compost bins in the residential Recycling Collection Event flyer sent out to 
City residents.  Educational materials on proper set-up and usage of the rain barrels 
and/or backyard compost bins will be provided.  City residents will be charged a user 
fee of $25 for each barrel/bin. 
 
OER wishes to involve the Covington staff at the level most comfortable for the City.  
OER will meet with the City of Covington staff at any time during the project for updates 
on activities or will pursue activities independently if desired by the City. 
 
The project budget will incorporate the City of Covington grant funds available from the 
Seattle-King County Health Department, King County Solid Waste Division, and the 

42 of 160



Washington State Department of Ecology.  Project grant funds total $46,000.00 in 2016 
and include all items that will be paid for directly by the City, including City staff time.   
 
The specific project activities to be carried out by OER are detailed in the grant scopes 
of work.  OER will cover project expenses as they arise, such as the costs of printing 
and vendor services.  OER will assist the City in requesting reimbursement for these 
costs from the King County Solid Waste Division, Seattle-King County Health 
Department, and the Washington State Department of Ecology. 
 
OER’s goal is to conduct events with very limited City staff time and no net City cost.  
However, there are a number of “official acts” necessary for the City to bring the 
program on line: 
 

 Sign and submit letters of intent. 
 Review and submit program scopes of work. 
 Sign necessary grant agreements. 
 Keep OER informed of any changes made to grant agreements. 
 Reimburse OER for staff time and expenses from grant funding. 

 
 

2016 Covington Recycling Grants 
 
The City of Covington is eligible and has applied for the following grants.  It is expected 
that no non-grant City funds will be expended on recycling projects in 2016.  The City 
has applied for the following: 
 
1) King County Local Hazardous Waste Management Plan Grant. 

2016 grant total - $9,579.24  
 
2) King County Waste Reduction and Recycling Grant Program. 

2016 grant total - $26,371.50 
 
3) Washington State Department of Ecology Coordinated Prevention Grant. 

2016 grant total - $7,475.00 (Coordinated by City of Maple Valley) 
 

4) Contingency in case additional grant funds come available - $2,574.26  
 

 
TOTAL:  $46,000.00 

43 of 160



Consent Agenda Item C-5 
Covington City Council Meeting 

 Date:  December 8, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE EASEMENT 

AGREEMENTS IN ASSOCIATION WITH THE CLEMENTS/SE 263RD PL 
DRAINAGE PROJECT. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. Easement Agreement for Parcel 262205-9117 
2. Easement Agreement for Parcel 262205-9116 
3. Easement Agreement for Parcel 262205-9157 
4. Easement Agreement for Parcel 262205-9193 
5. Easement Agreement for Parcel 262205-9050 

 
PREPARED BY:  Ben Parrish, SWM Program Coordinator 
  
EXPLANATION:   
The Clements/SE 263rd Place Drainage Project was identified as a priority project during the 
2014 Surface Water Management (SWM) rate study.  This project will replace an undersized and 
failing private conveyance system that connects several stormwater outfalls north of SE 263rd 
Place to the system on 159th Avenue SE.  The new conveyance system will need to be installed 
in the appropriate easements.  In order to acquire the necessary easements, staff requests for the 
council to authorize the City Manager to execute the attached utility easement agreements with 
the owners of parcels 262205-9117, 262205-9116, 262205-9157, 262205-9193, and 262205-
9050.  (See Attachments 1-5) 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Costs associated with easement acquisition have been accounted for in the overall project budget.  
This project is being funded primarily by the King County Flood Control District Sub-Regional 
Opportunity Fund and Flood Reduction Fund.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motion             Other 
 

1) Council member _______________ moves, Council member 
______________ seconds, to authorize the city manager to execute an 
easement agreement with the owner of parcel 262205-9117 in association 
with the Clements/SE 263rd PL Drainage Project, in substantial form as 
that attached hereto. 

 
 
 

 

44 of 160



2) Council member _______________ moves, Council member 
______________ seconds, to authorize the city manager to execute an 
easement agreement with the owner of parcel 262205-9116 in association 
with the Clements/SE 263rd PL Drainage Project, in substantial form as 
that attached hereto. 
 

3) Council member _______________ moves, Council member 
______________ seconds, to authorize the city manager to execute an 
easement agreement with the owner of parcel 262205-9157 in association 
with the Clements/SE 263rd PL Drainage Project, in substantial form as 
that attached hereto. 
 

4) Council member _______________ moves, Council member 
______________ seconds, to authorize the city manager to execute an 
easement agreement with the owners of parcel 262205-9193 in association 
with the Clements/SE 263rd PL Drainage Project, in substantial form as 
that attached hereto. 
 

5) Council member _______________ moves, Council member 
______________ seconds, to authorize the city manager to execute an 
easement agreement with the owner of parcel 262205-9050 in association 
with the Clements/SE 263rd PL Drainage Project, in substantial form as 
that attached hereto. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Finance Director, City Attorney, City Manager 

45 of 160



COVER SHEET 
    
 
Return Address: 
City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042-4964 
 
Document Title: EASEMENT AGREEMENT  
  
Reference Numbers:  
                   
Grantor: Dimmitt, Joel S.      
   
Grantee: City of Covington 
  
Legal Description: PTN of SE ¼, NE ¼, Sec. 26, T 22 N, R 5 E, W.M 
 
  
  
Parcel Number / Property Tax Account Number: 262205-9117   
 
       

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

46 of 160



 

STORM DRAINAGE EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS EASEMENT AGREEMENT made this _____ day of __________________20__, 
by and between the City of Covington, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington with 
an address of 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, WA 98042 (“Grantee”), and Joel S. 
Dimmitt and their successors (“Grantor”), for a permanent, nonexclusive easement.  
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner of land at parcel no. 262206-9117, legally described in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated by this reference (“Grantor Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantee requires an easement for the purpose of constructing, installing, 
repairing, reconstructing, and maintaining underground storm drainage facilities and 
appurtenances across and through the Grantor Property at a location more specifically 
described below;   
 
 NOW THERFORE, in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00), and other good and 
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the 
performance by Grantee of the covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter set forth, Grantor 
hereby grants, conveys, and quitclaims to Grantee a nonexclusive easement and right-of-way 
over, across, under and through the following described portion of the Grantor Property: 
 

That portion of Lot ‘B’, King County Boundary Line Adjustment No. S92L0120, 
Recorded under Recording Number 9208181765, lying within the Southeast 
Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 22 North, Range 5 
East, W.M. in King County, Washington, described as follows: 
 
The East 15 feet of the West 188.5 feet thereof. 
 
Contains: 2,453 Square Feet, more or less. 
 
(the “Easement Area”).  

 
 A depiction of the storm drainage route through the Easement Area is attached hereto 
as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by reference.  
 
 AND, Grantor and Grantee further covenant and agree as follows: 
 
1. Said easement is for the purpose of constructing, installing, maintaining, removing, 
repairing, reconstructing, replacing, and using underground storm drainage facilities and 
appurtenances across and through the Easement Area for the benefit of the Grantee (the 
"Storm Drainage Work"), together with the nonexclusive right of access over the remainder of 
the Grantor Property for the foregoing purposes. 
 
2. Grantor hereby also conveys to Grantee the temporary use of such additional area within 
fifteen (15) feet adjacent to the boundary of the Easement Area as shall be reasonably required 
for the construction and maintenance of the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances in the 
above-described easement.  
 
3. All cost and expense of Storm Drainage Work undertaken in the Easement Area by or at 
the behest of Grantee shall be paid and borne exclusively by Grantee. Grantee shall keep 

47 of 160



 

Grantor’s lands free and clear from any and all liens of whatever nature arising out of any Storm 
Drainage Work performed, materials furnished, and/or obligations incurred by, on behalf of, or 
under the direction of, Grantee. 
 
4. Upon completion of any Storm Drainage Work in the Easement Area, Grantee shall repair 
and restore the landscaping and surface improvements disturbed or removed by Grantee in the 
course of use of the Easement Area as nearly as practicable to the condition they were found in 
immediately prior to the Storm Drainage Work performed, all without cost or expense to Grantor. 
 
5. If in the use of the Easement Area Grantee damages other property of Grantor or causes 
damage to the Easement Area as a result of activity that is not permitted by this Easement 
Agreement, Grantee shall repair, replace, and restore, at Grantee's sole expense, said damage. 
 
6. Grantor shall retain the right to use the surface of the Easement Area as long as such use 
does not interfere with the easement rights granted to the Grantee. Grantor shall not, however, 
have the right to: 
  

(a) Erect or maintain any building or structures within the Easement Area; or 
(b) Plant trees, shrubs, or vegetation having deep rooting patterns which may cause   

damage to or interfere with the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances to be 
placed within the Easement Area by the Grantee; or 

(c) Place any fill material or perform any excavation within the Easement Area—the 
surface level of the ground within the Easement Area shall be maintained at the 
elevation as currently existing; or 

(d) Develop, landscape, or beautify the Easement Area in any way which would 
unreasonably increase the cost to the Grantee of restoring the Easement Area and 
any private improvements therein.    

 
In the event that this provision is violated the Grantee shall have the right to require removal of 
such building, structure, trees, shrubs, vegetation, or other improvements and the same shall be 
accomplished within a reasonable period of time at the Grantor’s sole expense. Failure of 
Grantee to so exercise its right to require removal shall not constitute waiver of this right.  
 
7. Grantee may, at any time, permanently abandon said easement and, at its discretion, may 
remove or abandon in place the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances. Upon such 
abandonment action, Grantee shall promptly execute and record a reconveyance and release of 
this Easement Agreement, whereupon this Easement Agreement with all rights and privileges 
mutually granted shall be fully canceled and terminated. 
 
8. Grantee shall indemnify and hold Grantor harmless from and against any and all loss, 
damage, or injury which may result from the use, construction, installation, replacement and 
maintenance of the Easement Area; provided, however, that said loss, damage, or injury does 
not arise out of or result from the negligent actions or omissions of Grantor, its agents, or 
employees. 

 
9. In case suit or action is commenced by either party, or their successors and/or assigns, to 
enforce any rights under this Easement Agreement, in addition to costs provided by statute, the 
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees in such sum as the 
court may adjudge just and reasonable. 
 

48 of 160



 

10. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a gift or dedication of any portion of the 
Easement Area to the general public or for the general public or for any public uses whatsoever 
other than those specifically described herein, it being the intention of the parties that this 
easement shall be strictly limited to and for the purpose herein expressed. 

 
11. The rights, conditions, covenants, and provisions contained in this Easement Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding on the parties hereto and their respective heirs, 
administrators, executors, successors, and assigns and shall run with the title to the Grantor 
Property. This Easement Agreement shall be recorded with the King County Recorder. 
 
12. Grantor warrants that it has title to the Grantor Property and is authorized to grant and 
convey this easement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this conveyance and Easement 
Agreement on the date first set forth above. 

 
 
GRANTOR 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Joel S. Dimmitt 
 

 
C

GRANTEE: CITY OF COVINGTON 
 

 
       

By: Regan Bolli 

Its: City Manager 

49 of 160



 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT – GRANTEE 

 
 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON  )  
                                )ss. 
COUNTY OF KING            ) 
 
 
 On this day, before me personally appeared ________________________________to 
me known to be the __________________________________for the City of Covington, and 
executed this instrument on behalf of the City of Covington in her/his capacity as 
_____________________________ and acknowledged that s/he is authorized to do so at their 
free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
GIVEN under my hand and official seal this _____day of  ________________________,  20__. 
 
 __________________________________________ 

Printed Name: ______________________________                                                                        
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  

 Washington residing at _______________________ 
 My commission expires: ______________________ 
 

50 of 160



 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT - GRANTOR 
 
 
STATE OF Washington )  
                                )ss. 
COUNTY OF  King  ) 
 
On this day, before me personally appeared _____________________________to me known 
to be the _____________________________________ for 
___________________________________, and executed this instrument on behalf of 
_____________________________________________ in her/his capacity as 
_______________________________________ and acknowledged that s/he is authorized to 
do so at their free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
GIVEN under my hand and official seal this _____ day of  _______________________,   20__. 
 
 __________________________________________ 
 NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  
 Washington residing at _______________________ 
 My commission expires: ______________________ 

51 of 160



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Legal Description of Grantor Property 
 

 

That portion of Lot ‘B’, King County Boundary Line Adjustment No. 

S92L0120, Recorded under Recording Number 9208181765, lying 

within the Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 

26, Township 22 North, Range 5 East, W.M. in King County, 

Washington. 

 
 

 

52 of 160



Page 1 of 1

EXHIBIT ‘A’

Owner: Joel S. Dimmitt
Parcel No. 262205-9117
Drainage Easement

That portion of Lot ‘B’, King County Boundary Line Adjustment No. S92L0120, Recorded under
Recording Number 9208181765, lying within the Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of
Section 26, Township 22 North, Range 5 East, W.M. in King County, Washington, described as
follows:

The East 15 feet of the West 188.5 feet thereof.

Contains: 2,453 Square Feet, more or less.

53 of 160



54 of 160



COVER SHEET 
    
 
Return Address: 
City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042-4964 
 
Document Title: EASEMENT AGREEMENT  
  
Reference Numbers:  
                   
Grantor: Romano, Michael S.       
   
Grantee: City of Covington 
  
Legal Description: PTN of SE ¼, NE ¼, Sec. 26, T 22 N, R 5 E, W.M.    
  
  
Parcel Number / Property Tax Account Number: 262205-9116   
 
       

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 2

55 of 160



 

STORM DRAINAGE EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS EASEMENT AGREEMENT made this _____ day of __________________20__, 
by and between the City of Covington, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington with 
an address of 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, WA 98042 (“Grantee”), and 
Michael S. Romano and their successors (“Grantor”), for a permanent, nonexclusive easement.  
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner of land at parcel no. 262206-9116, legally described in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated by this reference (“Grantor Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantee requires an easement for the purpose of constructing, installing, 
repairing, reconstructing, and maintaining underground storm drainage facilities and 
appurtenances across and through the Grantor Property at a location more specifically 
described below;   
 
 NOW THERFORE, in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00), and other good and 
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the 
performance by Grantee of the covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter set forth, Grantor 
hereby grants, conveys, and quitclaims to Grantee a nonexclusive easement and right-of-way 
over, across, under and through the following described portion of the Grantor Property: 
 

That portion of Lot 2, King County Short Plat No. 378071-R, as recorded under 
recording no. 7903190769, lying within the Southeast Quarter of the Northeast 
Quarter of Section 26, Township 22 North, Range 5 East, W.M. in King County, 
Washington, less the East 60 feet as measured perpendicular to the East 
property line of said Lot 2, described as follows: 
 
The North 15 feet of the West 188.5 feet thereof. 
 
Contains: 2,828 Square Feet, more or less. 

 

(the “Easement Area”).  
 
 A depiction of the storm drainage route through the Easement Area is attached hereto 
as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by reference.  
 
 AND, Grantor and Grantee further covenant and agree as follows: 
 
1. Said easement is for the purpose of constructing, installing, maintaining, removing, 
repairing, reconstructing, replacing, and using underground storm drainage facilities and 
appurtenances across and through the Easement Area for the benefit of the Grantee (the 
"Storm Drainage Work"), together with the nonexclusive right of access over the remainder of 
the Grantor Property for the foregoing purposes. 
 
2. Grantor hereby also conveys to Grantee the temporary use of such additional area within 
fifteen (15) feet adjacent to the boundary of the Easement Area as shall be reasonably required 
for the construction and maintenance of the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances in the 
above-described easement.  
 
3. All cost and expense of Storm Drainage Work undertaken in the Easement Area by or at 

56 of 160



 

the behest of Grantee shall be paid and borne exclusively by Grantee. Grantee shall keep 
Grantor’s lands free and clear from any and all liens of whatever nature arising out of any Storm 
Drainage Work performed, materials furnished, and/or obligations incurred by, on behalf of, or 
under the direction of, Grantee. 
 
4. Upon completion of any Storm Drainage Work in the Easement Area, Grantee shall repair 
and restore the landscaping and surface improvements disturbed or removed by Grantee in the 
course of use of the Easement Area as nearly as practicable to the condition they were found in 
immediately prior to the Storm Drainage Work performed, all without cost or expense to Grantor. 
 
5. If in the use of the Easement Area Grantee damages other property of Grantor or causes 
damage to the Easement Area as a result of activity that is not permitted by this Easement 
Agreement, Grantee shall repair, replace, and restore, at Grantee's sole expense, said damage. 
 
6. Grantor shall retain the right to use the surface of the Easement Area as long as such use 
does not interfere with the easement rights granted to the Grantee. Grantor shall not, however, 
have the right to: 
  

(a) Erect or maintain any building or structures within the Easement Area; or 
(b) Plant trees, shrubs, or vegetation having deep rooting patterns which may cause   

damage to or interfere with the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances to be 
placed within the Easement Area by the Grantee; or 

(c) Place any fill material or perform any excavation within the Easement Area—the 
surface level of the ground within the Easement Area shall be maintained at the 
elevation as currently existing; or 

(d) Develop, landscape, or beautify the Easement Area in any way which would 
unreasonably increase the cost to the Grantee of restoring the Easement Area and 
any private improvements therein.    

 
In the event that this provision is violated the Grantee shall have the right to require removal of 
such building, structure, trees, shrubs, vegetation, or other improvements and the same shall be 
accomplished within a reasonable period of time at the Grantor’s sole expense. Failure of 
Grantee to so exercise its right to require removal shall not constitute waiver of this right.  
 
7. Grantee may, at any time, permanently abandon said easement and, at its discretion, may 
remove or abandon in place the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances. Upon such 
abandonment action, Grantee shall promptly execute and record a reconveyance and release of 
this Easement Agreement, whereupon this Easement Agreement with all rights and privileges 
mutually granted shall be fully canceled and terminated. 
 
8. Grantee shall indemnify and hold Grantor harmless from and against any and all loss, 
damage, or injury which may result from the use, construction, installation, replacement and 
maintenance of the Easement Area; provided, however, that said loss, damage, or injury does 
not arise out of or result from the negligent actions or omissions of Grantor, its agents, or 
employees. 

 
9. In case suit or action is commenced by either party, or their successors and/or assigns, to 
enforce any rights under this Easement Agreement, in addition to costs provided by statute, the 
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees in such sum as the 
court may adjudge just and reasonable. 

57 of 160



 

 
10. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a gift or dedication of any portion of the 
Easement Area to the general public or for the general public or for any public uses whatsoever 
other than those specifically described herein, it being the intention of the parties that this 
easement shall be strictly limited to and for the purpose herein expressed. 

 
11. The rights, conditions, covenants, and provisions contained in this Easement Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding on the parties hereto and their respective heirs, 
administrators, executors, successors, and assigns and shall run with the title to the Grantor 
Property. This Easement Agreement shall be recorded with the King County Recorder. 
 
12. Grantor warrants that it has title to the Grantor Property and is authorized to grant and 
convey this easement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this conveyance and Easement 
Agreement on the date first set forth above. 

 
 
GRANTOR 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Michael S. Romano 
 

 
C

GRANTEE: CITY OF COVINGTON 
 

 
       

By: Regan Bolli 

Its: City Manager 

58 of 160



 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT – GRANTEE 

 
 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON  )  
                                )ss. 
COUNTY OF KING            ) 
 
 
 On this day, before me personally appeared ________________________________to 
me known to be the __________________________________for the City of Covington, and 
executed this instrument on behalf of the City of Covington in her/his capacity as 
_____________________________ and acknowledged that s/he is authorized to do so at their 
free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
GIVEN under my hand and official seal this _____day of  ________________________,  20__. 
 
 __________________________________________ 

Printed Name: ______________________________                                                                        
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  

 Washington residing at _______________________ 
 My commission expires: ______________________ 
 

59 of 160



 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT - GRANTOR 
 
 
STATE OF Washington )  
                                )ss. 
COUNTY OF  King  ) 
 
On this day, before me personally appeared _____________________________to me known 
to be the _____________________________________ for 
___________________________________, and executed this instrument on behalf of 
_____________________________________________ in her/his capacity as 
_______________________________________ and acknowledged that s/he is authorized to 
do so at their free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
GIVEN under my hand and official seal this _____ day of  _______________________,   20__. 
 
 __________________________________________ 
 NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  
 Washington residing at _______________________ 
 My commission expires: ______________________ 

60 of 160



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Legal Description of Grantor Property 
 

 

That portion of Lot 2, King County Short Plat No. 378071-R, as recorded under recording 
no. 7903190769, lying within the Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 
26, Township 22 North, Range 5 East, W.M. in King County, Washington, less the East 
60 feet as measured perpendicular to the East property line of said Lot 2. 

 
 

 

61 of 160



Page 1 of 1

EXHIBIT ‘A’

Owner: Michael S. Romano
Parcel No. 262205-9116
Drainage Easement

That portion of Lot 2, King County Short Plat No. 378071-R, as recorded under recording no.
7903190769, lying within the Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 22
North,  Range  5  East,  W.M.  in  King  County,  Washington,  less  the  East  60  feet  as  measured
perpendicular to the East property line of said Lot 2, described as follows:

The North 15 feet of the West 188.5 feet thereof.

Contains: 2,828 Square Feet, more or less.

62 of 160



63 of 160



COVER SHEET 
    
 
Return Address: 
City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042-4964 
 
Document Title: EASEMENT AGREEMENT  
  
Reference Numbers:  
                   
Grantor: Smith, Linda C.        
   
Grantee: City of Covington 
  
Legal Description: PTN of SE ¼, NE ¼, Sec. 26, T 22 N, R 5 E, W.M.    
  
  
Parcel Number / Property Tax Account Number: 262205-9157   
 
       

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 3

64 of 160



 

STORM DRAINAGE EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS EASEMENT AGREEMENT made this _____ day of __________________20__, 
by and between the City of Covington, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington with 
an address of 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, WA 98042 (“Grantee”), and Linda 
C. Smith and their successors (“Grantor”), for a permanent, nonexclusive easement.  
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner of land at parcel no. 262206-9157, legally described in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated by this reference (“Grantor Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantee requires an easement for the purpose of constructing, installing, 
repairing, reconstructing, and maintaining underground storm drainage facilities and 
appurtenances across and through the Grantor Property at a location more specifically 
described below;   
 
 NOW THERFORE, in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00), and other good and 
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the 
performance by Grantee of the covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter set forth, Grantor 
hereby grants, conveys, and quitclaims to Grantee a nonexclusive easement and right-of-way 
over, across, under and through the following described portion of the Grantor Property: 
 

That portion of Lot 4, King County Short Plat No. 378071R, recorded under 
recording no. 7903190769, Records of King County, Washington, lying within the 
Southeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 22 North, 
Range 5 East, W.M. described as follows: 
 
The North 15 feet thereof. 
 
Contains: 4,050 Square Feet, more or less. 

 

(the “Easement Area”).  
 
 A depiction of the storm drainage route through the Easement Area is attached hereto 
as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by reference.  
 
 AND, Grantor and Grantee further covenant and agree as follows: 
 
1. Said easement is for the purpose of constructing, installing, maintaining, removing, 
repairing, reconstructing, replacing, and using underground storm drainage facilities and 
appurtenances across and through the Easement Area for the benefit of the Grantee (the 
"Storm Drainage Work"), together with the nonexclusive right of access over the remainder of 
the Grantor Property for the foregoing purposes. 
 
2. Grantor hereby also conveys to Grantee the temporary use of such additional area within 
fifteen (15) feet adjacent to the boundary of the Easement Area as shall be reasonably required 
for the construction and maintenance of the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances in the 
above-described easement.  
 
3. All cost and expense of Storm Drainage Work undertaken in the Easement Area by or at 
the behest of Grantee shall be paid and borne exclusively by Grantee. Grantee shall keep 

65 of 160



 

Grantor’s lands free and clear from any and all liens of whatever nature arising out of any Storm 
Drainage Work performed, materials furnished, and/or obligations incurred by, on behalf of, or 
under the direction of, Grantee. 
 
4. Upon completion of any Storm Drainage Work in the Easement Area, Grantee shall repair 
and restore the landscaping and surface improvements disturbed or removed by Grantee in the 
course of use of the Easement Area as nearly as practicable to the condition they were found in 
immediately prior to the Storm Drainage Work performed, all without cost or expense to Grantor. 
 
5. If in the use of the Easement Area Grantee damages other property of Grantor or causes 
damage to the Easement Area as a result of activity that is not permitted by this Easement 
Agreement, Grantee shall repair, replace, and restore, at Grantee's sole expense, said damage. 
 
6. Grantor shall retain the right to use the surface of the Easement Area as long as such use 
does not interfere with the easement rights granted to the Grantee. Grantor shall not, however, 
have the right to: 
  

(a) Erect or maintain any building or structures within the Easement Area; or 
(b) Plant trees, shrubs, or vegetation having deep rooting patterns which may cause   

damage to or interfere with the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances to be 
placed within the Easement Area by the Grantee; or 

(c) Place any fill material or perform any excavation within the Easement Area—the 
surface level of the ground within the Easement Area shall be maintained at the 
elevation as currently existing; or 

(d) Develop, landscape, or beautify the Easement Area in any way which would 
unreasonably increase the cost to the Grantee of restoring the Easement Area and 
any private improvements therein.    

 
In the event that this provision is violated the Grantee shall have the right to require removal of 
such building, structure, trees, shrubs, vegetation, or other improvements and the same shall be 
accomplished within a reasonable period of time at the Grantor’s sole expense. Failure of 
Grantee to so exercise its right to require removal shall not constitute waiver of this right.  
 
7. Grantee may, at any time, permanently abandon said easement and, at its discretion, may 
remove or abandon in place the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances. Upon such 
abandonment action, Grantee shall promptly execute and record a reconveyance and release of 
this Easement Agreement, whereupon this Easement Agreement with all rights and privileges 
mutually granted shall be fully canceled and terminated. 
 
8. Grantee shall indemnify and hold Grantor harmless from and against any and all loss, 
damage, or injury which may result from the use, construction, installation, replacement and 
maintenance of the Easement Area; provided, however, that said loss, damage, or injury does 
not arise out of or result from the negligent actions or omissions of Grantor, its agents, or 
employees. 

 
9. In case suit or action is commenced by either party, or their successors and/or assigns, to 
enforce any rights under this Easement Agreement, in addition to costs provided by statute, the 
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees in such sum as the 
court may adjudge just and reasonable. 
 

66 of 160



 

10. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a gift or dedication of any portion of the 
Easement Area to the general public or for the general public or for any public uses whatsoever 
other than those specifically described herein, it being the intention of the parties that this 
easement shall be strictly limited to and for the purpose herein expressed. 

 
11. The rights, conditions, covenants, and provisions contained in this Easement Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding on the parties hereto and their respective heirs, 
administrators, executors, successors, and assigns and shall run with the title to the Grantor 
Property. This Easement Agreement shall be recorded with the King County Recorder. 
 
12. Grantor warrants that it has title to the Grantor Property and is authorized to grant and 
convey this easement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this conveyance and Easement 
Agreement on the date first set forth above. 

 
 
GRANTOR 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Linda C. Smith 
 

 
C

GRANTEE: CITY OF COVINGTON 
 

 
       

By: Regan Bolli 

Its: City Manager 

67 of 160



 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT – GRANTEE 

 
 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON  )  
                                )ss. 
COUNTY OF KING            ) 
 
 
 On this day, before me personally appeared ________________________________to 
me known to be the __________________________________for the City of Covington, and 
executed this instrument on behalf of the City of Covington in her/his capacity as 
_____________________________ and acknowledged that s/he is authorized to do so at their 
free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
GIVEN under my hand and official seal this _____day of  ________________________,  20__. 
 
 __________________________________________ 

Printed Name: ______________________________                                                                        
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  

 Washington residing at _______________________ 
 My commission expires: ______________________ 
 

68 of 160



 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT - GRANTOR 
 
 
STATE OF Washington )  
                                )ss. 
COUNTY OF  King  ) 
 
On this day, before me personally appeared _____________________________to me known 
to be the _____________________________________ for 
___________________________________, and executed this instrument on behalf of 
_____________________________________________ in her/his capacity as 
_______________________________________ and acknowledged that s/he is authorized to 
do so at their free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
GIVEN under my hand and official seal this _____ day of  _______________________,   20__. 
 
 __________________________________________ 
 NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  
 Washington residing at _______________________ 
 My commission expires: ______________________ 

69 of 160



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Legal Description of Grantor Property 
 

 

That portion of Lot 4, King County Short Plat No. 378071R, recorded under recording no. 
7903190769, Records of King County, Washington, lying within the Southeast Quarter of 
the Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 22 North, Range 5 East, W.M. 

 
 

 

70 of 160



Page 1 of 1

EXHIBIT ‘A’

Owner: Linda C. Smith
Parcel No. 262205-9157
Drainage Easement

That portion of Lot 4, King County Short Plat No. 378071R, recorded under recording no.
7903190769, Records of King County, Washington, lying within the Southeast Quarter of the
Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 22 North, Range 5 East, W.M. described as follows:

The North 15 feet thereof.

Contains: 4,050 Square Feet, more or less.

71 of 160



72 of 160



COVER SHEET 
    
 
Return Address: 
City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042-4964 
 
Document Title: EASEMENT AGREEMENT  
  
Reference Numbers:  
                   
Grantor: Clements, Larry E.      
 Clements, Sharon L.     
  
Grantee: City of Covington 
  
Legal Description: PTN of SW ¼, NE ¼, Sec. 26, T 22 N, R 5 E, W.M. 
  
  
Parcel Number / Property Tax Account Number: 262205-9193   
 
       

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 4

73 of 160



 

STORM DRAINAGE EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS EASEMENT AGREEMENT made this _____ day of __________________20__, 
by and between the City of Covington, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington with 
an address of 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, WA 98042 (“Grantee”), and Larry 
E. Clements and Sharon L. Clements and each their successors (together the “Grantor”), for a 
permanent, nonexclusive easement.  
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner of land at parcel no. 262206-9193, legally described in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated by this reference (“Grantor Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantee requires an easement for the purpose of constructing, installing, 
repairing, reconstructing, and maintaining underground storm drainage facilities and 
appurtenances across and through the Grantor Property at a location more specifically 
described below;   
 
 NOW THERFORE, in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00), and other good and 
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the 
performance by Grantee of the covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter set forth, Grantor 
hereby grants, conveys, and quitclaims to Grantee a nonexclusive easement and right-of-way 
over, across, under and through the following described portion of the Grantor Property: 
 

That portion of Lot ‘A’, City of Covington Boundary Line Adjustment No. BLA03-
001, Recorded under Recording No. 20030602900001, Records of King County 
Washington, lying within the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of the 
Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 22 North, Range 5 East, W.M. 
described as follows: 
 
The East 15 feet of the South 163.5 feet thereof. 
 
Contains: 2,453 Square Feet, more or less. 

 

(the “Easement Area”).  
 
 A depiction of the storm drainage route through the Easement Area is attached hereto 
as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by reference.  
 
 AND, Grantor and Grantee further covenant and agree as follows: 
 
1. Said easement is for the purpose of constructing, installing, maintaining, removing, 
repairing, reconstructing, replacing, and using underground storm drainage facilities and 
appurtenances across and through the Easement Area for the benefit of the Grantee (the 
"Storm Drainage Work"), together with the nonexclusive right of access over the remainder of 
the Grantor Property for the foregoing purposes. 
 
2. Grantor hereby also conveys to Grantee the temporary use of such additional area within 
fifteen (15) feet adjacent to the boundary of the Easement Area as shall be reasonably required 
for the construction and maintenance of the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances in the 
above-described easement.  
 

74 of 160



 

3. All cost and expense of Storm Drainage Work undertaken in the Easement Area by or at 
the behest of Grantee shall be paid and borne exclusively by Grantee. Grantee shall keep 
Grantor’s lands free and clear from any and all liens of whatever nature arising out of any Storm 
Drainage Work performed, materials furnished, and/or obligations incurred by, on behalf of, or 
under the direction of, Grantee. 
 
4. Upon completion of any Storm Drainage Work in the Easement Area, Grantee shall repair 
and restore the landscaping and surface improvements disturbed or removed by Grantee in the 
course of use of the Easement Area as nearly as practicable to the condition they were found in 
immediately prior to the Storm Drainage Work performed, all without cost or expense to Grantor. 
 
5. If in the use of the Easement Area Grantee damages other property of Grantor or causes 
damage to the Easement Area as a result of activity that is not permitted by this Easement 
Agreement, Grantee shall repair, replace, and restore, at Grantee's sole expense, said damage. 
 
6. Grantor shall retain the right to use the surface of the Easement Area as long as such use 
does not interfere with the easement rights granted to the Grantee. Grantor shall not, however, 
have the right to: 
  

(a) Erect or maintain any building or structures within the Easement Area; or 
(b) Plant trees, shrubs, or vegetation having deep rooting patterns which may cause   

damage to or interfere with the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances to be 
placed within the Easement Area by the Grantee; or 

(c) Place any fill material or perform any excavation within the Easement Area—the 
surface level of the ground within the Easement Area shall be maintained at the 
elevation as currently existing; or 

(d) Develop, landscape, or beautify the Easement Area in any way which would 
unreasonably increase the cost to the Grantee of restoring the Easement Area and 
any private improvements therein.    

 
In the event that this provision is violated the Grantee shall have the right to require removal of 
such building, structure, trees, shrubs, vegetation, or other improvements and the same shall be 
accomplished within a reasonable period of time at the Grantor’s sole expense. Failure of 
Grantee to so exercise its right to require removal shall not constitute waiver of this right.  
 
7. Grantee may, at any time, permanently abandon said easement and, at its discretion, may 
remove or abandon in place the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances. Upon such 
abandonment action, Grantee shall promptly execute and record a reconveyance and release of 
this Easement Agreement, whereupon this Easement Agreement with all rights and privileges 
mutually granted shall be fully canceled and terminated. 
 
8. Grantee shall indemnify and hold Grantor harmless from and against any and all loss, 
damage, or injury which may result from the use, construction, installation, replacement and 
maintenance of the Easement Area; provided, however, that said loss, damage, or injury does 
not arise out of or result from the negligent actions or omissions of Grantor, its agents, or 
employees. 

 
9. In case suit or action is commenced by either party, or their successors and/or assigns, to 
enforce any rights under this Easement Agreement, in addition to costs provided by statute, the 
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees in such sum as the 

75 of 160



 

court may adjudge just and reasonable. 
 
10. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a gift or dedication of any portion of the 
Easement Area to the general public or for the general public or for any public uses whatsoever 
other than those specifically described herein, it being the intention of the parties that this 
easement shall be strictly limited to and for the purpose herein expressed. 

 
11. The rights, conditions, covenants, and provisions contained in this Easement Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding on the parties hereto and their respective heirs, 
administrators, executors, successors, and assigns and shall run with the title to the Grantor 
Property. This Easement Agreement shall be recorded with the King County Recorder. 
 
12. Grantor warrants that it has title to the Grantor Property and is authorized to grant and 
convey this easement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this conveyance and Easement 
Agreement on the date first set forth above. 

 
 
GRANTOR 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Larry E. Clements 
 
 

____________________________________ 
By: Sharon L. Clements 
 

 
C

GRANTEE: CITY OF COVINGTON 
 

 
       

By: Regan Bolli 

Its: City Manager 

76 of 160



 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT – GRANTEE 

 
 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON  )  
                                )ss. 
COUNTY OF KING            ) 
 
 
 On this day, before me personally appeared ________________________________to 
me known to be the __________________________________for the City of Covington, and 
executed this instrument on behalf of the City of Covington in her/his capacity as 
_____________________________ and acknowledged that s/he is authorized to do so at their 
free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
GIVEN under my hand and official seal this _____day of  ________________________,  20__. 
 
 __________________________________________ 

Printed Name: ______________________________                                                                        
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  

 Washington residing at _______________________ 
 My commission expires: ______________________ 
 

77 of 160



 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT - GRANTOR 
 
 
STATE OF Washington )  
                                )ss. 
COUNTY OF  King  ) 
 
On this day, before me personally appeared _____________________________to me known 
to be the _____________________________________ for 
___________________________________, and executed this instrument on behalf of 
_____________________________________________ in her/his capacity as 
_______________________________________ and acknowledged that s/he is authorized to 
do so at their free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
GIVEN under my hand and official seal this _____ day of  _______________________,   20__. 
 
 __________________________________________ 
 NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  
 Washington residing at _______________________ 
 My commission expires: ______________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
STATE OF Washington )  
                                )ss. 
COUNTY OF  King  ) 
 
On this day, before me personally appeared _____________________________to me known 
to be the _____________________________________ for 
___________________________________, and executed this instrument on behalf of 
_____________________________________________ in her/his capacity as 
_______________________________________ and acknowledged that s/he is authorized to 
do so at their free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
GIVEN under my hand and official seal this _____ day of  _______________________,   20__. 
 
 __________________________________________ 
 NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  
 Washington residing at _______________________ 
 My commission expires: ______________________ 
 

78 of 160



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Legal Description of Grantor Property 
 

 

That portion of Lot ‘A’, City of Covington Boundary Line Adjustment No. BLA03-001, 
Recorded under Recording No. 20030602900001, Records of King County Washington, 
lying within the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of 
Section 26, Township 22 North, Range 5 East, W.M. 

 
 

 

79 of 160



Page 1 of 1

EXHIBIT ‘A’

Owner: Larry E. and Sharon L. Clements
Parcel No. 262205-9193
Drainage Easement

That portion of Lot ‘A’, City of Covington Boundary Line Adjustment No. BLA03-001, Recorded
under Recording No. 20030602900001, Records of King County Washington, lying within the
Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of the Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 22
North, Range 5 East, W.M. described as follows:

The East 15 feet of the South 163.5 feet thereof.

Contains: 2,453 Square Feet, more or less.

80 of 160



81 of 160



COVER SHEET 
    
 
Return Address: 
City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042-4964 
 
Document Title: EASEMENT AGREEMENT  
  
Reference Numbers:  
                   
Grantor: Clements, Larry E.      
   
Grantee: City of Covington 
  
Legal Description: PTN of NW ¼, SE ¼, Sec. 26, T 22 N, R 5 E, W.M.    
 
  
  
Parcel Number / Property Tax Account Number: 262205-9050   
 
       

 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 5

82 of 160



 

STORM DRAINAGE EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS EASEMENT AGREEMENT made this _____ day of __________________20__, 
by and between the City of Covington, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington with 
an address of 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, WA 98042 (“Grantee”), and Larry 
E. Clements and their successors (“Grantor”), for a permanent, nonexclusive easement.  
 
 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner of land at parcel no. 262206-9050, legally described in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated by this reference (“Grantor Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Grantee requires an easement for the purpose of constructing, installing, 
repairing, reconstructing, and maintaining underground storm drainage facilities and 
appurtenances across and through the Grantor Property at a location more specifically 
described below;   
 
 NOW THERFORE, in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00), and other good and 
valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and in consideration of the 
performance by Grantee of the covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter set forth, Grantor 
hereby grants, conveys, and quitclaims to Grantee a nonexclusive easement and right-of-way 
over, across, under and through the following described portion of the Grantor Property: 
 

That portion of the hereinafter described Parcel ‘A’, lying within the Northwest 
Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 22 North, Range 5 
East, W.M. described as follows: 
 
The North 15 feet of said Parcel ‘A’; 
EXCEPT the West 123 feet thereof. 
 
ALSO the East 15 feet of the West 123 feet of said Parcel ‘A’ 
 
Contains: 9,538 Square Feet, more or less 

 
(the “Easement Area”).  

 
 A depiction of the storm drainage route through the Easement Area is attached hereto 
as Exhibit “B” and incorporated herein by reference.  
 
 AND, Grantor and Grantee further covenant and agree as follows: 
 
1. Said easement is for the purpose of constructing, installing, maintaining, removing, 
repairing, reconstructing, replacing, and using underground storm drainage facilities and 
appurtenances across and through the Easement Area for the benefit of the Grantee (the 
"Storm Drainage Work"), together with the nonexclusive right of access over the remainder of 
the Grantor Property for the foregoing purposes. 
 
2. Grantor hereby also conveys to Grantee the temporary use of such additional area within 
fifteen (15) feet adjacent to the boundary of the Easement Area as shall be reasonably required 
for the construction and maintenance of the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances in the 
above-described easement.  
 

83 of 160



 

3. All cost and expense of Storm Drainage Work undertaken in the Easement Area by or at 
the behest of Grantee shall be paid and borne exclusively by Grantee. Grantee shall keep 
Grantor’s lands free and clear from any and all liens of whatever nature arising out of any Storm 
Drainage Work performed, materials furnished, and/or obligations incurred by, on behalf of, or 
under the direction of, Grantee. 
 
4. Upon completion of any Storm Drainage Work in the Easement Area, Grantee shall repair 
and restore the landscaping and surface improvements disturbed or removed by Grantee in the 
course of use of the Easement Area as nearly as practicable to the condition they were found in 
immediately prior to the Storm Drainage Work performed, all without cost or expense to Grantor. 
 
5. If in the use of the Easement Area Grantee damages other property of Grantor or causes 
damage to the Easement Area as a result of activity that is not permitted by this Easement 
Agreement, Grantee shall repair, replace, and restore, at Grantee's sole expense, said damage. 
 
6. Grantor shall retain the right to use the surface of the Easement Area as long as such use 
does not interfere with the easement rights granted to the Grantee. Grantor shall not, however, 
have the right to: 
  

(a) Erect or maintain any building or structures within the Easement Area; or 
(b) Plant trees, shrubs, or vegetation having deep rooting patterns which may cause   

damage to or interfere with the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances to be 
placed within the Easement Area by the Grantee; or 

(c) Place any fill material or perform any excavation within the Easement Area—the 
surface level of the ground within the Easement Area shall be maintained at the 
elevation as currently existing; or 

(d) Develop, landscape, or beautify the Easement Area in any way which would 
unreasonably increase the cost to the Grantee of restoring the Easement Area and 
any private improvements therein.    

 
In the event that this provision is violated the Grantee shall have the right to require removal of 
such building, structure, trees, shrubs, vegetation, or other improvements and the same shall be 
accomplished within a reasonable period of time at the Grantor’s sole expense. Failure of 
Grantee to so exercise its right to require removal shall not constitute waiver of this right.  
 
7. Grantee may, at any time, permanently abandon said easement and, at its discretion, may 
remove or abandon in place the storm drainage facilities and appurtenances. Upon such 
abandonment action, Grantee shall promptly execute and record a reconveyance and release of 
this Easement Agreement, whereupon this Easement Agreement with all rights and privileges 
mutually granted shall be fully canceled and terminated. 
 
8. Grantee shall indemnify and hold Grantor harmless from and against any and all loss, 
damage, or injury which may result from the use, construction, installation, replacement and 
maintenance of the Easement Area; provided, however, that said loss, damage, or injury does 
not arise out of or result from the negligent actions or omissions of Grantor, its agents, or 
employees. 

 
9. In case suit or action is commenced by either party, or their successors and/or assigns, to 
enforce any rights under this Easement Agreement, in addition to costs provided by statute, the 
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of attorneys’ fees in such sum as the 

84 of 160



 

court may adjudge just and reasonable. 
 
10. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a gift or dedication of any portion of the 
Easement Area to the general public or for the general public or for any public uses whatsoever 
other than those specifically described herein, it being the intention of the parties that this 
easement shall be strictly limited to and for the purpose herein expressed. 

 
11. The rights, conditions, covenants, and provisions contained in this Easement Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of and be binding on the parties hereto and their respective heirs, 
administrators, executors, successors, and assigns and shall run with the title to the Grantor 
Property. This Easement Agreement shall be recorded with the King County Recorder. 
 
12. Grantor warrants that it has title to the Grantor Property and is authorized to grant and 
convey this easement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this conveyance and Easement 
Agreement on the date first set forth above. 

 
 
GRANTOR 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
By: Larry E. Clements  
 

 
C

GRANTEE: CITY OF COVINGTON 
 

 
       

By: Regan Bolli 

Its: City Manager 

85 of 160



 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT – GRANTEE 

 
 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON  )  
                                )ss. 
COUNTY OF KING            ) 
 
 
 On this day, before me personally appeared ________________________________to 
me known to be the __________________________________for the City of Covington, and 
executed this instrument on behalf of the City of Covington in her/his capacity as 
_____________________________ and acknowledged that s/he is authorized to do so at their 
free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
GIVEN under my hand and official seal this _____day of  ________________________,  20__. 
 
 __________________________________________ 

Printed Name: ______________________________                                                                        
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  

 Washington residing at _______________________ 
 My commission expires: ______________________ 
 

86 of 160



 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT - GRANTOR 
 
 
STATE OF Washington )  
                                )ss. 
COUNTY OF  King  ) 
 
On this day, before me personally appeared _____________________________to me known 
to be the _____________________________________ for 
___________________________________, and executed this instrument on behalf of 
_____________________________________________ in her/his capacity as 
_______________________________________ and acknowledged that s/he is authorized to 
do so at their free and voluntary act and deed, for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 
 
GIVEN under my hand and official seal this _____ day of  _______________________,   20__. 
 
 __________________________________________ 
 NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of  
 Washington residing at _______________________ 
 My commission expires: ______________________ 

87 of 160



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Legal Description of Grantor Property 
 

 

The North 4 Acres of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast 
Quarter of Section 26, Township 22 North, Range 5 East, Willamette Meridian, King 
County, Washington. 

 
LESS the West 1 Acre. 

 
 

88 of 160



Page 1 of 1

EXHIBIT ‘A’

Owner: Larry E. and Sharon L. Clements
Parcel No. 262205-9050
Drainage Easement

That portion of the hereinafter described Parcel ‘A’, lying within the Northwest Quarter of the
Southeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 22 North, Range 5 East, W.M. described as follows:

The North 15 feet of said Parcel ‘A’;
EXCEPT the West 123 feet thereof.

ALSO the East 15 feet of the West 123 feet of said Parcel ‘A’

Contains: 9,538 Square Feet, more or less.

Parcel ‘A’

The North 4 Acres of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of
Section 26, Township 22 North, Range 5 East, Willamette Meridian, King County, Washington.

LESS the West 1 Acre.

89 of 160



90 of 160



Consent Agenda Item C-6 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  December 8, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER AMENDMENT TO THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITIES OF MAPLE VALLEY, COVINGTON, AND BLACK DIAMOND 
FOR JOINT PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS AND COOPERATIVE 
PURCHASING  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Second Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement Between the Cities of Maple Valley, 

Covington, and Black Diamond for Joint Public Works Operations and Cooperative 
Purchasing 

 
PREPARED BY:  Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor 
 
EXPLANATION: 
On May 10, 2011 the City Council approved the Interlocal Agreement between the Cities of Maple 
Valley, Covington, and Black Diamond for Joint Public Works Operations and Cooperative 
Purchasing (the “ILA”).  Covington and Maple Valley have since utilized the ILA to facilitate 
several public works projects. 

 
Upon further review, and with the idea that additional jurisdictions may choose to enter into the 
ILA, the city attorneys of Covington, Black Diamond, and Maple Valley drafted the first 
amendment to the original ILA.  On December 13, 2011 the City Council approved the first 
amendment.  The amendment is limited to liability issues and does not change the purpose, 
function, or structure of the ILA.  Specifically, the indemnity language was updated with mutual 
indemnification language, the insurance requirements have been simplified, and an additional 
worker injury claims provision was added. 
 
This Interlocal Agreement is due to expire on December 31, 2015.  Public Works staff is 
requesting to extend the term of the Interlocal Agreement for an additional five years to end on 
December 31, 2020. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not approve the amendment. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The proposed amendment has no fiscal impact. 
 
 
 
 
 

91 of 160



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance        Resolution    X    Motion         Other 
 

Councilmember _______________ moves, Councilmember________________ 
seconds to authorize the City Manager to execute a Second Amendment to 
the Interlocal Agreement between the Cities of Maple Valley, Covington, and 
Black Diamond for Joint Public Works Operations and Cooperative 
Purchasing, in substantial form as that attached hereto, to extend the term to 
December 31, 2020.   
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney, Finance Director 

92 of 160



SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITIES OF MAPLE VALLEY, COVINGTON 

AND BLACK DIAMOND FOR JOINT PUBLIC WORKS OPERATIONS AND 
COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 

 
 This amendment (“Amendment”) further amends the Interlocal Agreement 
between the cities of Maple Valley, Covington and Black Diamond for joint Public 
Works operations and cooperative purchasing (“Agreement”), executed on June 15, 
2011 and as amended on February 10, 2012, pursuant to Section 6 of said Agreement, as 
follows: 
 

1. Term of Agreement.  Section 6 of the Agreement shall be amended to 
extend the term of the Agreement until December 31, 2020. 

 
All other provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Dated this _____ day of December, 2015. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment on the day and 
year written above. 

 

CITY OF COVINGTON: 
 
By:      
Print Name: Regan Bolli   
Its:  City Manager   
  
DATE:      
 

 CITY OF MAPLE VALLEY: 
 
By:      
Print Name: David W. Johnston  
Its:   City Manager   
 
DATE:      
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
      
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
      
Patricia Taraday, City Attorney 

  

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
By:      
Print Name: Carol Benson   
Its:  Mayor    
  
DATE:      
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
      
Carol A. Morris, City Attorney 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

93 of 160



Consent Agenda Item C-7 
 Consent Agenda Covington City Council  
 Date:  December 8, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:   CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE WITH 

STALZER & ASSOCIATES    
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENTS:    

1. Contract Amendment for Stalzer & Associates 
2. Letter from Stalzer & Associates Detailing Additional Services Needed and Cost Increase  

 
PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                              
EXPLANATION: 
Our original contract with Stalzer and Associates for the Comprehensive Plan Update is 
scheduled to end on December 31, 2015.  We need to extend the contract an additional month 
through January 31, 2016 to account for additional time to secure City Council approval after 
your public hearing on January 12, 2016 and submission of our Plan to Puget Sound Regional 
Council (PSRC) for certification.  In addition, the work required on the Comprehensive Plan 
Update to meet State Department of Commerce and PSRC requirements in the Transportation 
Element and the Capital Facilities Plan (CFP) Element has increased beyond what was 
envisioned under the original contract.  Thus, it is necessary to amend our consultant contract to 
allow for an $8,767 increase in budget costs from $96,000 to $104,767 that were not envisioned 
and are unavoidable to meet State Growth Management Act (GMA) requirements.    
 
Attached are a contract amendment (See Attachment 1) reflecting these two changes and a letter 
from Stalzer and Associates (See Attachment 2) outlining the additional work necessary with 
associated costs with the $8767 contract budget increase.  The vast majority of the work and 
budget increase falls within the Transportation Existing Conditions and Element and the Capital 
Facilities Plan (CFP) Element.  Staff seeks council approval to authorize the City Manager to 
sign the contract Amendment #1 with Stalzer and Associates to extend the time period of the 
contract one month through January 31, 2016 and to increase the contract budget amount by 
$8767.   
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    _____Ordinance            Resolution  ______Motion      X     Other 
 

Council member _____________ moves, Council member ________________ 
seconds, to approve the contract amendment #1 to Contract 1378-15 with 
Stalzer and Associates for the Comprehensive Plan Update increasing the 
budget $8,767 and extending the contract effective date to January 31, 2016, 
in substantial form as that attached hereto, and authorizing the City 
Manager to sign said contract amendment.  

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

94 of 160



 Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

 
Amendment # 1 

 
Between the City of Covington and Stalzer & Associates 

 
That portion of Contract No. 1378-15 between the City of Covington and Stalzer & 
Associates, approved on April 28, 2015 in an amount not to exceed ninety six thousand 
dollars ($96,000), and set to expire on December 31, 2015, is amended as follows: 
 

1. Section 2 Term of Agreement: The effective date shall be changed through and 
until January 31, 2016. 

2. Section 3 Compensation and Method of Payment: The total amount paid under 
this agreement shall be changed to not exceed one hundred four thousand seven 
hundred sixty seven dollars ($104,767).  

 
All other provisions of the contract shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Dated this 8th day of December, 2015. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year written 
above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON     
 
 
____________________________________  
By: Regan Bolli      
Its: City Manager      
 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form only: 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk    Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
 
CONSULTANT 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
 
By: Bill Stalzer 
Its: Owner 

ATTACHMENT 1

95 of 160



ATTACHMENT 2

96 of 160



Agenda Item 1 
   Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: December 8, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE TESTIMONY REGARDING THE 

COVINGTON CITY COUNCIL’S PROPOSED ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 
KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT SIX-YEAR CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN FOR 
2015-2021. 

 
 CONSIDER PROPOSED ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE KENT SCHOOL 

DISTRICT SIX-YEAR CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN FOR 2015-2021 AND 
AMENDING THE CAPITAL FACILITIES ELEMENT OF THE COVINGTON 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO INCLUDE THE SAME. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                                                                   
ATTACHMENT(S):   
 1. Proposed Ordinance No. XX-15 Adopting the Kent School District Six-Year Capital 

Facilities Plan for 2015-2021 and Amending the Capital Facilities Element of the 
Covington Comprehensive Plan to Include the Same. 

 Exhibit A: Kent School District Six-Year Capital Facilities Plan for 2015-2021 
.  
PREPARED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director  
                                                            
EXPLANATION:  
The Kent School District (“District”), serving the citizens of Covington, has a Six-Year Capital 
Facilities Plan (“CFP”) that is incorporated by reference as a sub-element of the City of 
Covington’s Comprehensive Plan.  The state Growth Management Act (GMA) and CMC 
18.120.020 (2)-(3) requires local governments planning under GMA to annually adopt their 
school districts’ 6-year Capital Facilities Plan (CFP) and incorporate that document into their 
local Comprehensive Plan.   
 
The District has adopted an update to their CFP for 2015-2021. (See Exhibit A) Based upon 
enrollment forecasts, current inventory and capacity, current standard of service, relocatable 
capacity, and costs for facilities and improvements, the District anticipates having sufficient 
capacity to house students over the next six years.   
 
Pursuant to CMC 18.120.020(2)-(3), the city must adopt by reference the District’s updated CFP 
for 2015-2021 as part of the city’s Capital Facilities Element of our Comprehensive Plan.  
Attachment 1 is the proposed ordinance to adopt their CFP. (See Exhibit A) 
 
OPTIONS:   1) Adopt the Kent School District CFP as presented and requested by the District. 

2) Do not adopt the CFP and request further information from the District.    
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that council adopt the Kent School District 
CFP for 2015-2021 as presented.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None    

97 of 160



 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:       X       Ordinance           Resolution  _____Motion           Other 
 

Council member _____________ moves, Council member ________________ 
seconds, to pass an Ordinance, in substantial form as that attached hereto, 
adopting the updated Kent School District Six-Year Capital Facilities Plan 
for 2015-2021 and amending the Capital Facilities Element of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan to include the same.  

 
REVIEWED BY: City Manager 
  City Attorney 
  Finance Director  

98 of 160



ORDINANCE NO. 18-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
ADOPTING THE KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT SIX-YEAR 
CAPITAL FACILITIES PLAN FOR 2015-2021 AMENDING 
THE CAPITAL FACILITIES ELEMENT OF THE 
COVINGTON COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TO INCLUDE THE 
SAME; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the Kent School District (“District”) has prepared a capital facilities 
plan in compliance with the Growth Management Act that has previously been adopted 
by the City of Covington (“City”) within the Capital Facilities Element of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 18.120.020 of the Covington Municipal code (“CMC”) 

authorizes the City to adopt a district’s capital facilities plan by reference as part of the 
Capital Facilities Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has recently adopted an updated Six-Year Capital 

Facilities Plan for 2015-2021 (the “Plan”) and submitted their updated Plan to the City; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Plan contains the elements required by Section 18.120 CMC; and 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.130 (2)(a)(iv) allows amendment of the capital 

facilities element of a comprehensive plan if done concurrently with the adoption or 
amendment of a city’s budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, upon providing appropriate public notice, the Covington City 

Council conducted a public hearing on December 8, 2015, to receive testimony regarding 
the proposed amendment to the Capital Facilities Element of the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan, and the proposed City 2016 budget; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, KING 

COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Adoption. The City hereby adopts the Kent School District Six-Year Capital Facilities 
Plan for 2015-2021, as set forth in Exhibit A attached and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
Section 2. Amendment. The City hereby amends the Capital Facilities Element of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan to include the updated Kent School District Six-Year Capital Facilities Plan 
for 2015-2021, replacing the District’s previously adopted capital facilities plan.   
 
Section 3. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is 
determined to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this 
ordinance and ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it shall remain in force and effect. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

99 of 160



Section 4. Corrections. Upon approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and/or code reviser are 
authorized to make necessary corrections to this ordinance, including the correction of clerical 
errors; references to other local, state, or federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations; or ordinance 
numbering and section/subsection numbering. 
 
Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after 
proper posting and publication.  A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of 
publishing the ordinance in its entirety. 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Covington on the 8th day of December, 2015. 

 
_______________________                                             
Mayor Margaret Harto 

     
ATTESTED: PUBLISHED:  12-11-15                          

EFFECTIVE:   12-16-15                          
_________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

100 of 160



ATTACHMENT 1 
 EXHIBIT A

101 of 160



102 of 160



103 of 160



104 of 160



105 of 160



106 of 160



107 of 160



108 of 160



109 of 160



110 of 160



111 of 160



112 of 160



113 of 160



114 of 160



115 of 160



116 of 160



117 of 160



118 of 160



119 of 160



120 of 160



121 of 160



122 of 160



123 of 160



124 of 160



125 of 160



126 of 160



127 of 160



128 of 160



129 of 160



130 of 160



131 of 160



132 of 160



133 of 160



134 of 160



135 of 160



136 of 160



137 of 160



138 of 160



139 of 160



140 of 160



141 of 160



142 of 160



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: December 8, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  COVINGTON COMMUNITY PARK – PHASE 2 DESIGN   
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rachel Bahl, Interim Parks & Recreation Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Phase 2 Drawing 
 
PREPARED BY:  Angie Feser, Parks Planner 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Covington Community Park 60% design of Phases 2 and 3 were completed in 2014. This year, 
staff was successful in securing necessary funding including two RCO grants and legislative 
appropriation in order to build Phase 2. The $8.5m Phase 2 budget consists of five different 
funding sources including a city match of $354,000.  
 
Additional unplanned funding enables the scope of Phase 2 to expand to incorporate elements of 
Phase 3. Parks planning staff solicited design feedback from the Council during the September 
9th meeting. That input, incorporated with review and comments from the Parks and Recreation 
Commission and city staff is reflected in this proposed design.  
 
This presentation will discuss the additional elements included in the $7.2m base bid and 
proposes options for the Add-Alternates within the remaining $1m budget. Choices fall into two 
main options; (1) adding the outdoor education shelter and one large and standard shelter each or 
(2) grading for the future synthetic field.  
 
Next steps in the Covington Community Park Phase 2 project include, through most of 2016, 
processing grant contracts, project management, development of construction drawings, 
applications for wetlands mitigation and permits and going out to bid and then construction 
tentatively scheduled for 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
Selection between the two Add-Alternates options are within the project budget of $8.5m.  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution           Motion     X     Other 
 
 

PROVIDE DIRECTION TO STAFF 
 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; Finance, Interim Parks and Recreation Director 

143 of 160



ATTACHMENT 1

144 of 160



Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: December 8, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO DONATIONS OF MONEY AND 

PROPERTY TO THE CITY OF COVINGTON 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT:   

1. Draft ordinance 
 
PREPARED BY:  Rachel Ann Bahl, Interim Parks & Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
RCW 35.21.100 requires that donations to cities are accepted by ordinance; the attached ordinance 
supports the City of Covington’s policies and procedures for fundraising and the acceptance of 
donations for municipal purposes. The proposed ordinance establishes procedures for and 
encourages the acceptance of donations through established policies, such as the Public Art 
Fundraising Plan (Resolution 3-164), approved June 9, 2015. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Do not adopt the ordinance and provide direction to staff. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No change; allows for continued acceptance of donations 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:     X    Ordinance         Resolution          Motion          Other 
 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds to adopt an ordinance to establish a procedure for accepting and 
receipting donations to the City of Covington. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, and Finance Director. 

145 of 160



ORDINANCE NO. 19-15  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON RELATING 
TO DONATIONS OF BOTH MONEY AND PROPERTY TO 
THE CITY OF COVINGTON; ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 
3.85 TO THE COVINGTON MUNICIPAL CODE; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING FOR CORRECTIONS.  

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Covington (the “City”) has been and may continue to be 
approached by private citizens, business groups, or other private organizations desiring to make 
donations to the City for public purposes; and  
  

WHEREAS, RCW 35.21.100 requires that donations to the City of Covington (the 
“City”) be accepted by ordinance and, while City policy provides for acceptance of certain 
donations, the City has a need for a general ordinance to establish a procedure and means for the 
receipt of and the accounting for donations to the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to continue encouraging receipt of donations for the 
benefit of the residents of Covington; and  
  

WHEREAS, this ordinance is an exercise of the City’s police and legislative authority 
derived from Wash. Const. art. XI, Sec. 11 and is consistent with RCW 35.22.280, and is to 
protect the public health, safety, and welfare;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  New Chapter 3.85 CMC. A new chapter is hereby added to the Covington 
Municipal Code to read as follows: 
 

Chapter 3.85 
Donations of Property to City 

 
Section 3.85.010 Administration. 
Section 3.85.020 Acceptance. 
Section 3.85.030 Use. 
 
3.85.010 Administration. 
 
The City Manager or designee shall have the responsibility for the 
administration of all donations to the City and may issue policies 
and procedures to implement this ordinance.  
 
3.85.20 Acceptance. 
 
All monetary and non-monetary donations shall be reviewed and 
either accepted or denied consistent with the policies and procedures 
created to implement this ordinance.  

ATTACHMENT 1

146 of 160



 
3.85.030 Use. 
 
In the event a donor has indicated the donation is for a specific 
intended use by the City, such donation shall, to the extent 
reasonably feasible, be used consistent with the donor’s desired use. 
If a donor has not specified a particular desired use, the donation 
may be used for any municipal purpose.  

 
Section 2. Severability. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance shall be adjudged by any court of 
competent jurisdiction to be valid, such order or judgment shall be confined in its operation to 
the controversy in which it was rendered and shall not effect or invalidate the remainder of any 
parts thereof to any person or circumstances and to this end the provisions of each clause, 
sentence, paragraph, section, or part of this law are hereby declared to be severable.  

 
Section 3. Corrections by City Clerk.  Upon approval of the City Attorney, the City Clerk 

is authorized to make necessary technical corrections to this ordinance, including the correction of 
clerical errors; references to other local, state, or federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations; or 
section/subsection numbering. 

 
Section 4. Effective Date. Upon passage, this ordinance shall be published in the official 

newspaper of the city and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days after publication.  
 
 PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON ON THIS 
8th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015, AND SIGNED IN AUTHENTICATION OF ITS 
PASSAGE ON THE 8th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2015.  

 
 
_______________________                      
Mayor Margaret Harto 

     
PUBLISHED:  December 11, 2015 

EFFECTIVE:   December 16, 2015 
ATTESTED: 
 
                                          
Sharon Scott 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer 
City Attorney 

147 of 160



 Agenda Item 4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: December 8, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:   CONSIDER PROPOSED ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE CY2016 OPERATING 

AND CAPITAL BUDGET AND IMPLEMENTING THE CY2016 COST OF 
LIVING ADJUSTMENT FOR CITY EMPLOYEES 

 
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. Proposed 2016 Budget Ordinance with exhibits. 
 

RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The City Council has received the 2016 budget, held public hearings, and listened to 
presentations from staff about their respective departments. The City Manager presented an 
overview of the budget and gave his perspective on current and future budgets. In addition, 
Council reviewed the 6-year financial forecast.  
 
Based on direction from the Council, this ordinance represents the final known budget that the 
Council wishes to adopt for CY2016. The Council will be hearing additional public comment at 
this meeting and modifications may be made before final consideration. 
 

ALTERNATIVES:  
1. The Council could amend the proposed budget for CY2016.   
2. The budget could be adopted at a later date; however the budget is required to be adopted 

prior to the beginning of the new calendar year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The CY2016 Budget, including transfers-in (out) and fund balances, totals $41,569,914.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:       X    Ordinance  _____Resolution  _____Motion    _____Other 

  
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember __________  
seconds, to pass an Ordinance, in substantial form as that attached 
hereto,  adopting the CY2016 Operating and Capital Budget. 

 

148 of 160



  
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING THE 
CY2016 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET AND 
IMPLEMENTING THE CY2016 COST OF LIVING 
ADJUSTMENT FOR CITY EMPLOYEES. 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 35A.33 RCW requires the city to adopt an annual budget and 

provides procedures for the filing of estimates, a preliminary budget, deliberations, public 
hearings, and final adoption of the budget; and 
 

WHEREAS, a preliminary budget for the year 2016 was prepared and filed with the City 
Clerk; and 
 

WHEREAS, public hearings were scheduled and properly noticed for October 27, 2015, at 
7:00 pm and November 24, 2015, at 7:00 pm for the purpose of making and adopting the final 
budget for the year 2016; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council did hold said hearings and deliberated and made such 
changes as deemed necessary and proper; and 
 

WHEREAS, the estimated expenditures set forth in said budget being all necessary to carry 
on the government of the City of Covington for the year 2016 and being sufficient to meet the 
needs of the City of Covington for this period; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  The budget for the City of Covington, Washington, for the year 2016 is hereby 
adopted at the fund level in its final form and content as set forth in the document entitled “City of 
Covington 2016 Budget” dated December 8, 2015, a true and correct copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit "A", and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

Section 2.  Estimated resources, including fund balances or working capital for each 
separate fund of the City of Covington for the year 2016, and aggregate totals for all such funds 
combined are set forth in summary form below and are hereby appropriated for expenditure at the 
fund level during the year 2016 as set forth below:  
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

149 of 160



FUND AMOUNT 
General Fund  $          15,344,516  
Street Fund                1,577,571  
Development Services Fund                4,052,507  
Surface Water Management Fund              10,282,456  
Capital Investment Program Fund                5,262,759  
Cumulative Reserve Fund                1,429,679  
Contingency Fund                   421,746  
Real Estate Excise Tax Fund 1st Qtr                   200,000  
Real Estate Excise Tax Fund 2nd Qtr                   200,000  
Local Improvement District Fund                     34,350  
LID Guaranty Fund                     34,350  
Long-Term Debt Service Fund                1,278,465  
Unemployment Reserve Fund                   329,968  
Equipment Replacement Fund                1,121,547  
Total All Funds  $          41,569,914  

 
 
 
 

 
Section 3.  The 2016 budget provides funding for and it is hereby authorized that a 1.6072% 

Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) for all regular (non-contract) city employees is to take effect 
on January 1, 2016. 
 

Section 4.  The 2016 budget provides funding for and it is hereby authorized that a step 
increase be awarded to all employees on that date which is one year from their date of hire or the 
date of their last step increase.  The exact details of the step program are to be established by the 
City Manager, subject to the funded level in the budget. 
 

Section 5.  The 2016 Salary Schedule for authorized positions is attached hereto as Exhibit 
“B”, and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

Section 6.  Any surplus funds remaining in the Local Improvement District Fund after all 
bonds have been paid shall be transferred to the LID Guaranty Fund.  Upon certification by the 
Finance Director that the LID Guaranty Fund has sufficient funds currently on hand to meet all 
valid outstanding obligations of the fund and all other obligations of the fund reasonably expected 
to be incurred in the near future, then the surplus funds shall be transferred to the General Fund.  
The net cash of the LID Guaranty fund may be reduced to no less than ten percent of the net 
outstanding obligations guaranteed by the fund. 
 

Section 7.  The Parks and Recreation Department, Aquatics Division, is allowed to increase 
or decrease FTE’s based on program demand. 
 

150 of 160



Section 8.  A complete copy of the final budget as adopted herein shall be transmitted to 
the Division of Municipal Corporations in the office of the State Auditor and to the Municipal 
Research and Services Center of Washington.  Three copies of the final budget as adopted herein 
shall be filed with the City Clerk and shall be available for use by the public. 
 

Section 9.  Upon the approval of the City Attorney, the City Clerk is authorized to make 
any necessary corrections to this ordinance including, but not limited to, the correction of 
scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, ordinance numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any 
reference thereto. 

 
Section 10.  If any provision of this ordinance, or ordinance modified by it, is determined 

to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions of this ordinance, and 
ordinances and/or resolutions modified by it, shall remain in force and effect. 
 

Section 11.  This ordinance shall be in force and take effect five (5) days after its 
publication according to law. 
 

Passed by the Council on this 8th day of December, 2015. 
 
        ________________________ 
 Mayor Margaret Harto 
 
 
ATTESTED: PUBLISHED:  December 11, 2015 
    
 EFFECTIVE:   December 16, 2015 
____________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

151 of 160



 2016
City of Covington

Adopted Budget - By Fund
For the Fiscal Year 2016

Surface Capital
Development Water Investment Cumulative 

General Street Services Management Program Reserve
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

 Beginning Fund Balances
     (Projected), January 1, 2016 4,150,161$          556,590$             2,794,277$          8,072,456$          2,769,786$          1,420,479$          

Projected Revenues: 11,160,005          809,295               1,258,230            2,210,000            1,130,866            3,200                   

Projected Expenditures: (9,675,128)           (1,162,589)           (1,301,699)           (2,648,594)           (1,386,832)           -                            

Fund Transfers In: 34,350                 211,686               -                            -                            -                            6,000                   
Fund Transfers (Out): (1,090,151)           (6,000)                  -                            -                            -                            -                            

     Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
          Over Expenditures 429,076               (147,608)              (43,469)                (438,594)              (255,966)              9,200                   

Base Budget Projected Ending Fund
     Balances, December 31, 2016 4,579,237$          408,982$             2,750,808$          7,633,862$          2,513,820$          1,429,679$          

Decision Packages:

   Decision Packages Expenditures: (512,145)              (81,664)                (144,020)              (113,660)              (1,547,900)           -                              

   Related Revenues -                            -                            -                            -                            1,302,107            -                            

   Fund Transfers In: -                            -                            -                            -                            60,000                 -                            
   Fund Transfers (Out): (60,000)                -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

   Debt Proceeds: -                              -                            -                            -                            -                              -                            

      Total Decision Packages (572,145)              (81,664)                (144,020)              (113,660)              (185,793)              -                            

Assigned Ending Fund Balance 1,969,637            -                            -                            -                            152,876               -                            

Adjusted Ending Fund 
     Balances, December 31, 2016 2,037,455$          327,318$             2,606,788$          7,520,202$          2,175,151$          1,429,679$          

Totals for Budget Ordinance Sources 15,344,516$        1,577,571$          4,052,507$          10,282,456$        5,262,759$          1,429,679$          

Totals for Budget Ordinance Uses (15,344,516)$       (1,577,571)$         (4,052,507)$         (10,282,456)$       (5,262,759)$         (1,429,679)$         

EXHIBIT A

152 of 160



 2016
City of Covington

Adopted Budget - By Fund
For the Fiscal Year 2016

Unemployment
Real Estate Real Estate L.I.D. L.I.D. Long-Term Insurance Equipment

Contingency Excise Tax Excise Tax 99-01 Guaranty Debt Service Reserve Replacement
Fund Fund 1st Qtr% Fund 2nd Qtr% Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

421,746$             -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         278,254$             954,003$             21,417,752$     

-                            200,000               200,000               34,350                 -                            -                            51,714                 167,544               17,225,204       

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            (1,278,465)           (50,000)                (106,508)              (17,609,815)      

-                            -                            -                            -                            34,350                 1,278,465            -                            -                            1,564,851         
-                            (200,000)              (200,000)              (34,350)                (34,350)                -                            -                            -                            (1,564,851)        

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            1,714                   61,036                 (384,611)           

421,746$             -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         279,968$             1,015,039$          21,033,141$     

-                            -                              -                              -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            (2,399,389)        

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            1,302,107         

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            60,000               
-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            (60,000)             

-                              -                            -                            -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              -                         

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            (1,097,282)        

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            2,122,513         

421,746$             -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         279,968$             1,015,039$          17,813,346$     

421,746$             200,000$             200,000$             34,350$               34,350$               1,278,465$          329,968$             1,121,547$          41,569,914$     

(421,746)$            (200,000)$            (200,000)$            (34,350)$              (34,350)$              (1,278,465)$         (329,968)$            (1,121,547)$         (41,569,914)$    

153 of 160



Position

City Manager 149,029$    - 177,948$    

Community Development Director 118,047$    - 140,954$    

Finance Director 118,047$    - 140,954$    

Parks & Recreation Director 118,047$    - 140,954$    

Public Works Director 118,047$    - 140,954$    

Chief Building Official 102,000$    - 121,793$    

City Engineer 96,227$      - 114,901$    

Development Review Engineer 85,643$      - 102,263$    

Deputy Building Official 85,643$      - 102,263$    

Senior Information Systems Administrator 83,218$      - 99,367$      

City Clerk/Executive Assistant 80,794$      - 96,473$      

Personnel Manager 78,509$      - 93,744$      

Principal Planner 78,509$      - 93,744$      

Senior Accountant 76,222$      - 91,014$      

Maintenance Supervisor 76,222$      - 91,014$      

Communications & Marketing Manager 76,222$      - 91,014$      

Plans Examiner/Building Inspector 76,222$      - 91,014$      

Recreation Manager 76,222$      - 91,014$      

Senior Planner 74,064$      - 88,437$      

Aquatic Supervisor 71,906$      - 85,860$      

Surface Water Management Program Coordinator 69,830$      - 83,381$      

Permit Center Coordinator 67,837$      - 81,001$      

Construction Inspector 67,837$      - 81,001$      

Parks Planner 67,837$      - 81,001$      

Annual

City of Covington
Employee Positions/Salary Range Schedule

For the Fiscal Year 2016

Salary Range

154 of 160

EXHIBIT B



Position Annual

City of Covington
Employee Positions/Salary Range Schedule

For the Fiscal Year 2016

Salary Range

Associate Planner/Code Enforcement Officer 65,916$      - 78,707$      

Programs Supervisor/Public Works 65,916$      - 78,707$      

Accountant I 63,996$      - 76,415$      

Engineering Technician/GIS Coordinator 63,996$      - 76,415$      

Personnel & Human Services Analyst 62,185$      - 74,254$      

Senior Deputy City Clerk 62,185$      - 74,254$      

Maintenance Worker 60,375$      - 72,092$      

Senior Accounting Clerk 56,958$      - 68,011$      

Aquatics Specialist 53,733$      - 64,159$      

Athletics Specialist 53,733$      - 64,159$      

Recreation Specialist 53,733$      - 64,159$      

Executive Department Assistant/Receptionist 49,257$      - 58,816$      

Permit/Planning Technician 47,821$      - 57,102$      

Customer Service Specialist 46,468$      - 55,485$      

Office Technician II/Executive Office 46,468$      - 55,485$      

Management Assistant 41,356$      - 49,381$      

Water Safety Instructor II 35,969$      - 42,948$      

Specialty Instructor 33,933$      - 40,518$      

Water Safety Instructor 33,933$      - 40,518$      

Recreation Assistant 33,933$      - 40,518$      

Desktop Support Technician 30,256$      - 36,128$      

Engineering/GIS Intern 30,030$      - 35,857$      

Finance Assistant 30,030$      - 35,857$      

Aquatics Lead 28,597$      - 34,147$      

155 of 160



Position Annual

City of Covington
Employee Positions/Salary Range Schedule

For the Fiscal Year 2016

Salary Range

Lifeguard II 28,597$      - 34,147$      

Maintenance Worker (Seasonal) 28,306$      - 33,799$      

Lifeguard 26,979$      - 32,214$      

Recreation Lead 26,979$      - 32,214$      

Referee 21,713$      - 25,926$      

Recreation Aide

Office Assistant $12/hr flat rate

$12/hr flat rate

156 of 160



  
Covington City Council Meeting 
           Date:  December 8, 2015 

 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, January 12, 2016 
 Special Meeting – Joint Study Session with Planning Commission 

 
7:00 p.m., Tuesday, January 12, 2016 

 Regular Meeting 
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

157 of 160



 
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH PLANNING COMMISSION 
Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 

Tuesday, January 12, 2016 – 6:00 p.m. 
                                                                         
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The study session is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council, 
Commissioners, and city staff regarding policy issues.  Study sessions may involve presentations, 
feedback, brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key policy matters. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL JOINT STUDY SESSION TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
 1. Planning Commission 2016 Work Plan (Hart) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 
the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 

 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay services, please use the state’s toll-free relay service at 800-833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-
480-2400. 
 
 

*Note* A Regular Council meeting will follow at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

Draft 
as of 12/4/15 

 

158 of 160

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, January 12, 2016                                                                                                  City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A Joint Study Session with Planning Commission is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
OATH OF OFFICE TO NEWLY ELECTED COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
SELECTION OF MAYOR 
 
SELECTION OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
 
RECEPTION FOR NEWLY ELECTED COUNCILMEMBERS, MAYOR AND MAYOR PRO TEM 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, not 

the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes per 
speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  November 10, 2015 Regular Meeting; November 24, 2015 Special Meeting-Joint Study 

Session with Planning Commission; November 24, 2015 Regular Meeting; December 8, 2015 
Special Meeting; and December 8, 2015 Regular Meeting (Scott) 

C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Appointments to Council’s Commission Interview Sub Committees (Council) 
C-4. Appointments to Council’s Commission Exit Interview Sub Committee (Council) 
C-5. Appointments to Council’s Audit Committee (Hendrickson) 
C-6. Approve Indigent Defense Services Agreement (Bolli) 
C-7. Approve Interlocal Agreement with City of Kent for CIP 1127 (Vondran) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Appointments to 2016 Representatives to Regional Boards and Committees (Council) 
2. Consider Code Amendments on Sheds and Accessory Structures (Bykonen/Hart) 
3. Consider Planning Commission 2016 Work Plan (Hart) 

  

Draft 
as of 12/4/15 

 

159 of 160

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/


COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 To Review the Performance of a Public Employee Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g). 

 To Discuss Potential Litigation Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i). 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

 
 

jmichaud
Typewritten Text
160 of 160

jmichaud
Typewritten Text

jmichaud
Typewritten Text

jmichaud
Typewritten Text


	12-08-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda Version 2
	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 12-08-2015 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent C-1 Attachments
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 2015 Budget Amendment Blue Sheet and Ordinance
	Consent C-2 Attachment 1 2015 Budget Amendment Attachment 1 Ordinance
	Consent C-2 Attachment 1 Exhibit A 2015 Budget Amendment Exhibit A
	Consent C-2 Attachment 1 Exhibit B 2015 Budget Amendment Exhibit B
	Consent C-3 Green Sheet 12-08-15 Blue Sheet Abaco Pacific Agreement
	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 Abaco Pacific Agreement 2016 - 2017
	Consent C-4 Green Sheet 12-08-15  2016 OER Contract Blue Sheet
	Consent C-4 Attachment 1 2016_COV-OER_Consultant_Agreement
	Consent C-5 Green Sheet 12-08-15 Clements Easements
	Consent C-5 ATT 1 Stormdrain Easement _9117_Dimmit_8DEC2015
	Consent C-5 ATT 2 Stormdrain Easement _9116_Romano_8DEC2015
	Consent C-5 ATT 3 Stormdrain Easement _9157_Smith_8DEC2015
	Consent C-5 ATT 4 Stormdrain Easement _9193_Clements2_8DEC2015
	Consent C-5 ATT 5 Stormdrain Easement_9050_Clements_8DEC2015
	Consent C-6 Green Sheet 12-08-15 Tri-City ILA Amendment Blue Sheet
	Consent C-6 Attachment 1 Covington_MV_BD_ILA_Joint_Operations_SECOND AMENDMENT_12-2015
	Consent C-7 Green Sheet Blue Sheet Contract Amend. for Comp Plan Update with Stalzer & Associates
	Consent C-7 Attachment 1 Contract Amend. Comp Plan Update Budget Change (2)
	Consent C-7 Attachment 2_Ltr Richard Hart re Comp Plan Budget Adjustment 120215
	Item 1 Blue Sheet - Kent School 2016 CFP Adoption
	Item 1 Attachment 1 Ord Adopting 2016 Kent CFP
	Item 1 Attachment 1 Exhibit A Adopted CPF-KSD July 14 2015
	Item 2 Blue Sheet CCP Ph2 Design
	Item 2 Attachment 1 - CCP Ph2 Drawing 11x17
	Item 3 Blue Sheet 12-8-15 Blue Sheet for Fundraising Ordinance
	Item 3 Attachment  1 ORD_Donations Acceptance_8DEC2015
	Item 4 Blue Sheet 12-8-15 2016 Budget Adoption Blue Sheet
	Item 4 Attachment 1 12-8-15 2016 Budget Adoption Ordinance
	Item 4 Attachment 1 Exhibit A for 2016 Budget Ordinance
	Item 4 Attachment 1 Exhibit B 2016 Budget Adoption
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	01-12-2016 Special Meeting-Joint Study Session w-Planning Commission Agenda
	01-12-2016 Regular Meeting Agenda



